J.R.Khanna & Company

Chartered Accountants

. Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Milestone Gears Private Limited
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Milestone Gears Private Limited (‘the Company’), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory notes (collectively, the “Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2025, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance withi‘the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and'the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements. :

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2025. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures

performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
financial statements.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

New Product Development (NPD):

During the year, the Company has capitalised
development costs related to new product lines ,
pursuant to confirmed commercial orders. In
accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
38 — Intangible Assets, development expenditure
incurred on materials, direct overheads, and other
attributable costs is initially recognised as Intangible
Assets Under Development. Upon commencement of
commercial supply, the Intangible assets under
development is transferred to Intangible Assets and
amortised over a period of five years, representing the
estimated economic life of the developed products.
Accordingly, during the financial year 2024- 25, INR
355.23 millions were considered charged to Intangible
Assets Under Development out of which INR 69.53
million were transferred to Intangible Assets upon
commercial supplies. Refer to Note 5 and 6.

Our audit procedure among others included the
following:

-Took management representation regarding
the development of new product along with
the list of items being developed.

-Verified the working of estimated cost
including direct overheads attributable to
NPD with relevant supporting.

- Obtained Independent Chartered Engineer’s
Certificate in support of attributable cost.

Borrowings :

In reference to Note 16 and 18 of the Financial
Statements the company has carrying amount of INR
3,740.12 million of borrowings (including interest
accrued) as at 31 March 2025 for various purposes
including term loans and bills discounting.

Our audit procedure among others included the
following:

-Verified the utilisation of the funds for the
purpose for which they were borrowed and
ensure there is no diversion of funds.

-Verified the movement with the bank
statements.

-Obtained bank confirmations for the
outstandings.

- Verified that there is no default in repayment
of the instalment or interest thereon.

Investments :

In reference to Note 7 of the financial statements, the
company is carrying investments in preference shares
in a related party amounting to INR 35.83 millions and
investments in unquoted Fund amounting to INR 0.87
million. The carrying amount has been measured at fair
value through Other Comprehensive Income

Our audit procedure among others included the
following:

-Independent valuation was done in the case of
investment in related party for arriving at
the carrying amount of INR 35.83 millions.

-Valuation determined by fund has been
considered for fair value of investment in
unquoted fund in reference to carrying
value of INR 0.87 millions.
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Emphasis of Matter:

Transition to Ind AS during the year ended 31 March 2025:

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, (the “‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act as the net worth of the company
exceeded INR 250 crores in the previous year.

The Company’s financial statements upto and for the year ended 31 March 2024 were prepared in accordance
with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

Year ended 31 March 2025 was the Company’s first financial year which was prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards had
been applied. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as
prescribed under section 133 of the Act, which was the previous GAAP. An explanation of how the transition
to Ind AS had impacted the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flow of the
Company is provided in Note 41 of the financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the bther information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. ;

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
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design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we-exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: :

e A
*Identify and assess the risks of material misgieme it g the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures,responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basi§*for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher-than- for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
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manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2025 and
are therefore the key audit matters have been included. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the infofﬁleffion and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for.the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books except for verification of audit log as stated in
paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

©) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

® The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under section 143(3) (b) of the Act and paragraph 2(i)(vi)

below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended);
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(2)

()

(i)

ii.

iil.

v.

V.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B” to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2025 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 32 to the financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses during the year ended 31 March 2025;

There was no amount which was required to be transferred by the company to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund during the year ended 31 March 2025

a) The management has represented that, t6 the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
note 42 to the financial statements, n%;,ﬁunds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium of’any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherv\%“se;ﬁ%at the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of

the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
note 42 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person
or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

There is no dividend declared and paid during the year by the Company.
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vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility,
however whether the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software, its maintenance or whether there are changes (if any) at data base level made
using privileged/ administrative access rights in audit trail feature remains unverified in the absence
of availability of relevant logs.

For J.R. Khanna & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.:004315N

ﬂ/u/(/ulwu

Anil Khanna
Proprietor
Membership No. 083275:

Place: Parwanoo
Date: 20/09/2025

Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is 25083275BMGYPM5931
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s report
Re: Milestone Gears Private Limited

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended on 31 March 2025, we report that:

(i)(a)(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b)Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in the previous year in
accordance with a planned program of verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable have regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. As informed, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company.

(d)The Company has not revalued its Propercy, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or
intangible assets during the year.

(e) Based on the information and explanatiomishéd_ to us, no proceedings have been initiated on or
are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and Rules made thereunder

(ii)(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year, except for inventory lying with third parties. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records. In respect of inventory lying
with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by the third parties.

(b)The Company has been sanctioned borrowing of working capital limits by the banks to the tune of
INR 2,750 millions (FY 2023-24: INR 2,000 Millions) (Actual borrowing as on 31 March 2025 is
INR 2,408.04 millions (as on 31 March 2024: INR 1,727.16 millions)), in aggregate, during the year,
on the basis of security of current assets as reflected in Note no. 16 Current Borrowings to the
Financial Statements. As per the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit
procedures, the quarterly statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks for working
capital facilities are broadly in agreement with the books of account. The Company has provided
reconciliations explaining the differences, which primarily relate to year end adjustments due to Ind
AS provision. We have reviewed the reconciliation and found it to be consistent with the underlying
records.
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(iii) (a) During the year the Company has provided loans to employees only. The Company has not provided
loans, advances in the nature of loans, or provided security to any company, firm, Limited Liability
Partnership or any other party. The aggregate of loans provided to employees during the year is INR
3.40 million (Previous year INR 0.45 million) and the year end balance of such loans was INR 1.61
million (Previous year INR 0.79 million).

(b)The company had made investment in Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Polycycle
Private Limited (a company in which relative of directors are interested) to the tune of INR 30.1
million in the earlier years. The same has been evaluated on fair value basis by the Independent
Valuers and accordingly the carrying amount of INR 35.83 millions as reflected in note 7 to the
financial statements with corresponding effect in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The terms and
conditions of the said investment is not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

(c)The Company has granted loans to employees only, the repayment of such loans, as per the schedule
of repayment of principal wherever stipulated is regular barring few cases where on the request and
need of the employee, the repayment has been deferred.

(d)There are no amounts of loans granted to employees which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(e)There is no loan granted to the employees which was fallen due during the year, that have been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same
parties. S

(f) The Company has not granted any significant loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to any company, firm, Limited
Liability Partnership or any other party except to employees as stated above.

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, with
respect to loans and investments made.

(v) The Company has not accepted deposits covered within the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Acceptance of deposits) Rules 2014
with regard to deposits from the public. No order has been passed by Company Law Board or national
company law tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal in this regard.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts relating to materials, labour and other items of cost
maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance
of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and we are of the
opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have
not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(vii) (a) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including Employees' State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Goods and
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Service Tax (GST) or Cess and any other material statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited during the year by the company with the appropriate authorities.

According to information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
the aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable. Except the following:

Provident fund of INR 0.04 million and labour welfare fund of INR 0.02 million for the financial
year 2024-25 have not been paid till 31 March 2025 due to mismatch in employee records with
Company and PF department.

(b)The particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at 31 March 2025 which have not been
deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Income Tax Matters:

The rectification applications for giving effect to the favourable appellate orders from Assessment
Year 2010-11 to Assessment Year 2020-21 are pending. The appeal effect prima facie will result in
vacation of demand for Assessment Year 2017-18 amounting to INR 45.82 million and for
Assessment Year 2018-19 amounting to INR 15.45 million respectively. In respect of Assessment
Year 2017-18, the income tax department has appealed against the appellate order deleting the
addition of INR 56.31 million before thégﬁ?g&ﬁ €& ‘urt of Himachal Pradesh.

Another appeal has been filed by thé c%’mfwy for A55essment Year 2017-18 under section 143(1), in

which demand of INR 2.23 million disputed by the company is pending decision by the
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals).

Goods and Services Tax Matters:

Central Goods and Service Tax Division, Khanna, for the Audit Period July 2017 to March 2023 has
raised a demand of INR 1.84 million and Penalty of INR 1.84 million on account of not reversing the
wrongly availed ITC. The company intends to contest the demand raised within the allowable time as
per law which has not expired upto the date of signing of the financial statements.

(viii)The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest to any lender during the year.

(b)the company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined
under the Act) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by
the Reserve Bank of India.
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(¢)On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no term loans were applied for

the purpose other than for which the loans were obtained by the Company during the year.

(d)On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short term

basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) The Company do not have any subsidiary as on 31 March 2025. Hence, the requirement to report on

clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company do not have any subsidiary as on 31 March 2025. Hence, the requirement to report on

clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments). Hence this clause is not applicable.

(b)The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or

(xi)(@)

partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of recording the true and fair view of the
financial statements and as per the mfoxzmatlo %d explanations given by the management, we report
that except as detailed below, no fraud by th”“e Company and on the company has been noticed or
reported during the year: "
One of the suppliers of the company has forged the supply documents without suppling the material
by adjusting the advance of INR 7.93 million. The company has lodged first information report (FIR)
and has also filed suit against the vendor under applicable laws for recovery of advance of INR 8.89
million along with interest. The amount being doubtful of recovery has been duly provided in the
financial statements.

(b)During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed
with the Central Government as the fraud mentioned in item (xi)(a) above is below the thrash hold
limit of Rs. 1 Crores.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has not received any whistle-blower complaints during
the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(xii)As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting
under Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,

2013 where applicable, and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. The
internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under audit
have been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the Act under
Clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c)The Company is not a Core Investme%g gvpa”%s‘y (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly;

| the %r_epo\tit‘ing under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not

Gir

applicable to the Company.

(d)Based on the information and explaﬁéfionsmﬁi'cn)vided by the management of the Company, the
Company does not have any CICs as part of the group.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting
under Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 40 to the financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
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J.R Khanna & Company

Chartered Accountants

any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)(a) As per information given to us, in our opinion, as reflected in Note 28 (ii) — an amount of INR 0.06
million overspent during the year on projects other than ongoing projects. (Previous year INR 0.72

millions unspent which has been subsequently deposited in Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund
before 30 September 2024)

(b) In our opinion and as per information given to us there are no ongoing projects for the purposes of
Corporate Social Responsibility as required under subsection (5) of Section 135 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of financial
statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For J.R. Khanna & Company
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.:004315N

Place: Parwanoo

Anil Khanna
Proprietor
Date: 20/09/2025

Membership No. 083275:
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Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is 25083275BMGYPM5931
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Annexure — B to the Independent Auditors’ Report in the Financial Statements of Milestone Gears
Private Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Milestone Gears Private Limited

(“the Company™) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

HNO 515, SECTOR 36 B, CHANDIGARH
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statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAL

For J.R.Khanna & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.:004315N

W

Anil Khanna

Proprietor

Membership No. 083275:

i For J.R.Khanna & Company
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.:004315N
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Place: Parwanoo
Date: 20/09/2025

Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is 25083275BMGYPM5931
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Milestone Gears Private Limited

CIN : U29130HP1984PTC005831

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in ¥ in millions, unless otherwise stated)

3 As at As at As at
Particulars Notes i
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant & equipment 3 1,576 .91 1,402.27 1,408.59
Right-of-use assets 38 339.91 214.24 210.72
Capital work-in-progress 4 325.02 487.14 225.69
Intangible assets 5] 62.34 3833 3.53
Intangible assets under development 6 285.70 - -
Financial assets
(i) Investments 7} 36.70 32.61 30.58
(ii) Other financial assets 8 114.93 91.71 54.00
Deferred tax assets (net) 29 81.14 74.65 69.98
Non Current tax assets (net) 9 V2%5] 9.38 023
Other non-current assets 10 101.99 118.16 178.63
Total non-current assets 2,931.91 2,433.49 2,188.95
Current assets
Inventories 11 1,669.12 1,326.71 1,346.10
Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 12 1,436.24 1,378.04 1,618.41
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 0.39 0.26 8.19
(iii) Other financial assets 8 0.07 - 0.18
Other current assets 10 138.99 5 216.23
Total current assets 3,244.81 2,782.58 3,189.11
Total assets 6,176.72 5,216.07 5,378.06
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 14 30.00 30.00 30.00
Other equity 15 1,232.64 1,010.98 937.44
Total equity 1,262.64 1,040.98 967.44
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 854.31 1,027.02 1,291.99
(ii) Lease liabilities 38 257.46 156.65 163.66
Provisions 19 17.18 10.47 1735
Total non-current liabilities 1,128.95 1,194.14 1,473.00
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 2,873.26 2,125.43 1,876.44
(ii) Lease liabilities 38 98.14 58.05 46.27
(i1i) Trade payables
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 17 22.47 - -
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 17 734.97 732.99 954 .21
(iv) Other financial liabilities 18 32.61 37.32 32.90
Other current liabilities 20 15.57 23.05 17.92
Provisions 19 4.30 411 4.07
Current tax liabilities (net) 21 3.81 - 5.81
Total current liabilities 3,785.13 2,980.95 2,937.62
Total equity and liabilities 6,176.72 5,216.07 5,378.06

The accompanying material accounting policies and other explanatory notes form an integral part of the Financial Information.

As per our attached report of even date
For J.R.Khanna & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firmg registration number : 0043 15N

Anil Khanna
Proprietor
M No.083275

Place : Parwanoo

Date - 9 004 Qpa‘g

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Milestone Gears Private Limited

/
AshokKumar Tandon

Director
DIN : 00968232

Place : Parwanoo,

352005

Budhiraja
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Parwanoo

Date : Mt‘ﬁ'”w

UDIN~25083275BMGYPM5931

Aman Tandon
Managing Director
DIN: 02159395

Place : Parwanoo

Company Secretary
M No. A-21857
Place : Parwanoo

Date : 2944912925



Milestone Gears Private Limited

CIN: U29130HP1984PTC005831

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in ¥ in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Notes For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income (I)

Expenses

Cost of raw materials and components consumed

Changes in 1nventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and scra
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation & amortization expense

Other expenses

Total expenses (II)

Profit before tax (I-II)

Tax Expenses
Current tax
Deferred tax
Total tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to above items

Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on investment through Other Comprehensive Income
Income tax relating to above items

Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earning per equity share (EPS) of par value ¥ 10 each
Basic and Diluted (%)

The accompanying material accounting policies and other explanatory notes form an integral part of the Financial Information.

As per our attached report of even date

2 5,301.69 5,333.24
23 167.22 26.69
5,468.91 5,359.93

24 (a) 2,505.61 2,428.65
24 (b) (326.19) 139.23
25 528.59 567.29
26 292.13 268.63
27 405.44 33344
28 1,797.85 1,519.14
5,203.43 5,256.38

265.48 103.55

29 51.67 43.15
29 (6.83) (6.80)
44.84 36.35

220.64 67.20

(2.72) 6.44
0.68 (1.62)

(2.04) 4.82

4.09 2.03
(1.03) (0.51)

3.06 1.52

1.02 6.34

221.66 73.54

30 245 0.75

For J.R.Khanna & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Milestone Gears Private Limited

Firm registration number : 0043 15N

Anil Khanna

160 036 /%4 //rshok Kuinar Tandon

Aman Tandon

Proprietor ‘{S' Director Managing Director
M No.083275 DIN : 00968232 DIN: 02159395
e Place : Parwanoo

Place : Parwanoo Place : Parwanoo

[y oﬁaovs'

Date : Qp+ ﬁ-w,\g—

Place : Parwanoo

Date :2¢ 0§25

Pafikaj Budhiraja
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Parwanoo

Date : ) 89 2035

Company Secretary
M No. A-21857

UDIN-25083275BMAYPM5 93]



Milestone Gears Private Limited

CIN : U29130HP1984PTC005831

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in ¥ in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustment For :

Finance costs

Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain)
Interest income on fixed bank deposits

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

Interest income on security deposits

Balance written off

Bad debts written off

Excess provisions / liabilities no longer required written back
Reversal of loss allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Loss allowance for bad and doubtful advances

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Operating profit before working capital changes

Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
Decrease/(increase) in other financial assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
(Decrease)/increase in other current liabilities
(Decrease)/increase in financial liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in provisions

Cash flows generated from operations

Net income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Payment for purchase of property, plant & equipment including capital work-in-
progress (excluding borrowing cost)

Payment for purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress
Investment in fixed bank deposits

Interest income received

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Payment of principal portion of lease liability

Payment of interest portion of lease liability

Interest paid

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities (C)

Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Balances with banks

[n current accounts

Cash and cash equivalents at year end (refer notel3)

265.48 103.55
291.07 266.34
0.02 (7.83)
(2.24) (2.96)
(134.59) (3.22)
(5.16) (3.15)

2 0.31

- 13.51

(0.04) 5

(7.64)

8.89 5.80
405.44 333.44
821.23 705.79

(342.41) 19.39
(50.56) 220.75
(69.40) 137.75
(12.90) (30.84)

24.45 (211.45)
(7.48) 5.13
(0.58) 4.81

4.18 (0.40)
366.53 850.93
(45.75) (51.11)
320.78 799.82

(390.11) (444.97)
(355.30) (1.40)
233.40 5.54

2 (10.00)

2.30 2.85

(509.71) (447.98)

1,145.07 447.47

(570.23) (463.82)
(80.35) (52.03)
(26.65) (20.01)

(278.78) (271.37)
189.06 (359.76)

0.13 (7.93)

0.26 8.19

0.39 0.26

0.38 0.25

0.01 0.01

0.39 0.26




Milestone Gears Private Limited

CIN : U29130HP1984PTC005831

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in € in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Notes :

1) The Statement of cash flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' set out in IND AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flow'.
2) Changes in liabilities arising from financial activities

Opcaing Cashflows Other changes Closing balance as at
LR CREN i e s 31 March 2025
01 April 2024
Borrowings 3,152.45 574.84 0.28 SNESH
Lease liabilities 214.70 (107.00) 247.90 355.60
pLITLLTS Cashflows Other changes Closing balance as at
D e ae) 31 March 2024
01 April 2023 =
Borrowings 3,168.43 (16.35) 0.37 3,152.45
Lease liabilities 209.93 (72.04) 76.81 214.70

The accompanying material accounting policies and other explanatory notes form an integral part of the Financial Information.

As per our attached report of even date
For J.R.Khanna & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number : 0043 15N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Milestone Gears Private Limited

Anil Khanna
Proprietor
M No.083275

Place : Parwanoo

Date : 2}) -oﬁ'Rv.lE

Ashok Kunfar Tandon Aman Tandon

Director
DIN : 00968232

Place : Parwanoo

Piankaj Budhiraja
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Parwanoo

Date : 200§ 205

Managing Director
DIN: 02159395

Place : Parwanoo

Date 20082055

LA
Mohinde) gh
Company Secretary
M No. A-21857

Place : Parwanoo

Date : 20.08:20%¢

UDIN-25083275RM@eYPMN593]



Milestone Gears Private Limited

CIN : U29130HP1984PTC005831

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in T in millions, unless otherwise stated)

A) Equity Share Capital
Numbers Amount
Balance as at 01 April 2023 30,00,000 30.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - f
Balance as at 31 March 2024 30,00,000 30.00
Changes in equity share capital during the period - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 30,00,000 30.00
B) Other Equity
Reserve and Surpulus
Equity instruments
Retainerlearnines through Oth.er Total Equity
Comprehensive
Income
Balance as at 01 April 2023 939.07 (1.63), 937.44
Profit for the year 67.20 - 67.20
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 482 1.52 6.34
Balance as at 31 March 2024 1,011.09 (0.11) 1,010.98
Profit for the year 220.64 - 220.64
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (2.04) 3.06 1.02
Balance as at 31 March 2025 1,229.69 2.95 1,232.64

The accompanying material accounting policies and other explanatory notes form an integral part of the Financial Information

As per our attached report of even date
For J.R.Khanna & Co.

Chartered Accountants

registration number : 004315N

Fi QBN

Sector-a68 Y,
CHANDIGARHK /s
160 036 /&

Anil Khanna
Proprietor
M No.083275

Place : Parwanoo

Date : Ao ,‘ﬁ”f

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Milestone Gears Private Limited

o0
Ashok Ki andon

Director
DIN : 00968232

Place : Parwanoo
4920985
7

Pankaj Budhiraja
Chief Financtal Officer

Place : Parwanoo

Date : Qoto'* 20%%5

Aman Tandon
Managing Director
DIN: 02159395

Place : Parwanoo

Date : 3¢ ;ﬁ‘u »-

Mobhil gh
Company Secretary
M No. A21857

Place : Parwanoo

Date :90199.2435~
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Milestone Gears Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

Milestone Gears Private Limited (“the Company™), is domiciled in India and was incorporated on 27 April 1984 as a private limited company.
The Company has its registered office at Plot No. 58, Sector-1, Parwanoo, Himachal Pradesh- 173220. The Company is primarily engaged in
the business of manufacturing and selling transmission components.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of directors on
20 September 2025.

2. Material accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements of the Company comprises of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025; the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income/(loss)), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
and the material accounting policies and explanatory notes (collectively, the ‘Financial Statements’).

Audited Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred
to as “IND AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and
presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013, as applicable to these financial statements and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, which have been approved by the Board of Directors at their meetings held on 20 September 2025.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
a) Functional and presentation currency

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“INR”) and all values are rounded to the nearest million (INR 000,000), except when
otherwise indicated.

b) Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements has been prepared on accrual and going concern basis following the historical cost convention, except for certain
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. No such matters were identified that could create material uncertainties related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

¢) Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these Financial Statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

i. Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the Financial Statements:

Determining the lease term of the contract with renewal and termination option - Company as a lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether
it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term
if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option
to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customization to the leased asset).

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate:

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asse ;hf{‘i},s"iiﬁj’[m\-conomic environment. The IBR therefore reflects




Milestone Gears Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease.

ii. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Financial Statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of
the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Provision for employee benefits

The measurement of obligations and assets related to defined benefit / other long term benefits plans makes it necessary to use several statistical
and other factors that attempt to anticipate future events. These factors include assumptions about the discount rate, the rate of future
compensation increases, withdrawal, mortality rates etc. The management has used the past trends and future expectations in determining the
assumptions which are used in measurements of obligations through actuarial process using Projected Unit credit method.

Impairment of trade receivables

The impairment provisions for trade receivables disclosed are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated.
They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the
Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Provision for litigation

The management determines the estimated probability of outcome of any litigation based on its assessment supported by technical advice on
the litigation matters, wherever required.

Fair value measurement of financial instrument

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

d) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
held primarily for the purpose of trading;
expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is treated as current when it is:

expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

held primarily for the purpose of trading;

due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

® o o o

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current assets/liabilities.

*
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization/settlement in cash and cash equivalents.
The Company has identified twelve months as their operating cycle for classification of their current assets and liabilities.
N

e) Property, plant and equipment




Milestone Gears Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Recognition and initial measurement

Property plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria
are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Subsequent expenditures related to an
item of property, plant and equipment are added to its book value only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the entity and cost can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site to its former condition at the end of its useful
life, the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling, removing or restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition or
construction upon completion and a corresponding liability is recognized.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is being
charged on written down value basis over the estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset category Estimated Useful lives
(in years)

Buildings 30

Plant & Machineries 15

Factory Equipment 5

Electrical Installation 10

Furniture & Fixtures 10
Computers 3

Office Equipment D)

Vehicles 8

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date or whenever there are indicators for impairment and adjusted
prospectively.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the depreciation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The depreciation expense on
tangible assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Capital work in progress (CWIP)

The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use is recorded as capital work-in-progress before such date. Cost of
construction that relate directly to specific property, plant and equipment and that are attributable to construction activity in general and can be
allocated to specific property, plant and equipment are included in capital work-in-progress.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. Thé
residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

f) Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent computer software and product development cost. Intangible assets are stated at their acquisition cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any. The cost of intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and
non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use. Intangible assets are
amortized in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis in accordance with the estimated useful lives of respective assets. The
management’s estimates of the useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Asset category Estimated Useful lives (in

Software
Product development cost
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Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All
other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred. '

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets under development (IAUD)

Expenditure incurred on development activities is recognized as Intangible Assets Under Development when it meets the recognition criteria
prescribed under Ind AS 38, i.e., when the project is technically feasible, the Company has the intention and ability to complete and use/sell the
asset, future economic benefits are probable, and the costs can be measured reliably. Such expenditure is accumulated and shown under
Intangible Assets Under Development until the asset is ready for its intended use, at which point it is reclassified to Intangible Assets and
amortized over its estimated useful life.

Intangible assets under development are tested for impairment at each reporting date or whenever indicators of impairment exist.

The Company has commenced capitalization of development costs related to new product lines effective FY 202425, pursuant to confirmed
commercial orders. The development expenditure includes cost incurred on materials, direct overheads, and other attributable costs which is
initially recognized as Intangible Assets Under Development. Upon commencement of commercial supply, the amount under IAUD is
transferred to Intangible Assets and amortized over a period of five years, representing the estimated economic life of the developed products.

g) Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost less any interest income
earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period they occur.

The Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization as the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing
during the period, to the extent that an entity borrows funds specifically for obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if the Company borrows
generally and uses the funds for obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalization are determined by applying a
capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset.

h) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Company's balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial Assets
Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e. the date on which the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Recognized financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Based on the business model, the contractual characteristics of the financial assets and specific elections where appropriate, the Company
classifies and measures financial assets in the following categories:

Amortized cost: A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at Fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows ('Asset held to collect contractual
cash flows'); and

« the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
('SPPT') on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement and based on the assessment of the business model as asset held to collect contractual cash flows and SPPI, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate (‘EIR’ _e_th(kd‘. Interest income and impairment
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expenses are recognized in profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the EIR method. Any
gain and loss on derecognition are also recognized in profit or loss.

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest over the relevant period. The
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the EIR,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is both to
collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the assets, ('Contractual cash flows of assets collected through hold and sell model') and contractual
cash flows that are SPPI, are subsequently measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount of such financial assets are recognized in
Other Comprehensive Income (‘OCI’), except interest/dividend income which is statement of profit and loss. Amounts recorded in OCI are
subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss in case of debt instruments, however, in case of equity instruments it will be directly
transferred to reserves.

Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets, which do not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI
or either designated, are measured at FVTPL. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet)
when:

(a) the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

(b) the Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and Either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated

liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on
the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

e Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 115.

e  Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g. security deposits, and fixed bank deposits;

For recognition of impairment loss on these financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition.

The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at amortized costs.
Loss allowances of the Company are measured on either of the following bases:

e 12-month ECLs: these are ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or for a
shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months); or

e Lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument or contract asset.

i

Simplified approach
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The Company applies the simplified approach to provide for ECLs for all trade receivables and other financial assets. The simplified approach
requires the loss allowance to be measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Financial Liabilities
Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, financial liabilities at amortized
cost (loan and borrowings), as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, other financial liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.
Financial liabilities at amortized costs (Loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Reclassification of Financial Instruments

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is
made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification
is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent.
The company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to
the Company’s operation. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediate next reporting period following the change in the business
model. The Company does not restate any previously recognized gains, losses (includismgEfipaisment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

i) Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements is presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency. Functional currency is
the currency of the primary economic environment in which a company operates and is normally the currency in which the company primarily
generates and expends cash.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting
date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

j) Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at amounts expected to be paid to or recovered from taxation authorities. The tax rates and laws

used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date and includes any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Current tax relating to items outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to
realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect
the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which
method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized, using the balance sheet method, on all deductible and taxable temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, and on carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except on the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Tax relating to items recognized
outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or equity).

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it
becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

k) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attrib
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during th
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period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element
in a rights issue, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without
a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. There is no diluted
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I) Revenue recognition
i.  Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Sale of products

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on dispatch
or delivery of the goods, depending on the terms agreed with the customer. The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon delivery.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of gears, axels and shaft, the Company considers the
effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the
customer (if any).

Revenue from sale of products excludes GST and is net of sales returns, trade discounts.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale of products provide customers with a right of return the
goods within a specified period.

Rebates and discounts

The Company accounts for cash discounts to customers as a reduction of revenue based on the rateable allocation of the discounts/ incentives
to the underlying performance obligation that corresponds to the progress by the customer towards earning the discount/ incentive. If it is
probable that the criteria for the discount will not be met, or if the amount thereof cannot be estimated reliably, then discount is not recognized
until the payment is probable and the amount can be estimated reliably.

Significant financing component
Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not
adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the

period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one
year or less.

Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (h) Financial instruments.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities (termed as Advance from customers in the financial statements) represents the obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made, or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Sale of services

Sale of services represents revenue from Tooling Income/die design. Revenues from Tooling Income/die design and preparation charges are
recognized as and when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of dies are transferred to the customers as per the terms of the contract.
The normal credit period is 30 to 90 days.

ii. Other operating revenue
Export Incentives

Revenue from export incentives is accounted for on export of goods if the entitlements can be£stimatéd-with reasonable assurance and conditions
precedent to claim are fulfilled. 3
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iii. Other income

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate (EIR) applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition. While calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all
the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

m) Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognized as an expense during the period when the employees render the services. These benefits include performance incentive and
compensated absences.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays specified contributions to a separate entity. The
Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and Pension Scheme.

The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the above fund and scheme. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the fund/ scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance
sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other defined benefit plans and the present value of the obligation of defined benefit plans are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in
the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for defined benefit plans, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to
demographic changes. Future salary increases are based on the expected future inflation rates.

Company’s liability towards gratuity is determined at each year end. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined
using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes
in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

e Net interest expense or income
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Long-term employee benefits

The liabilities for compensated absences are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using
the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a
result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

n) Leases
Company as a lessee

Definition of a lease

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

A lease is a contract that contains right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company
applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The Company recognizes lease liabilities
to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

The Company has lease contracts for various items of plant and machinery, land and buildings etc.
i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Class of asset Lease period/useful lives (in years)
Land and Buildings 5-99
Plant and machineries 5

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. The Right-of-use assets are presented as separate line item in the balance sheet.
ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments.

The lease liabilities are presented as separate line item in the balance sheet under financial liabilities.

iii) Short-term leases

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of units and office leases (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
iv) Company as a lessor
When the company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of
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Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless
the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate the lessor for the expected inflationary cost increases.
The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their respective nature.

o) Provisions, contingencies and commitments

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net
of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an
outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is-

a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or
b)  apresent obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:
e itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation; or
. the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed in the financial informations.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

p) Impairment of non-financial assets

Cash generating units as defined in Ind AS 36 on impairment of assets are identified at the balance sheet date. At the date of Balance Sheet, if
there are indications of impairment and the carrying amount of the cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use), an impairment loss is recognized. The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount
and the reduction is recognized as an impairment loss in the statement of profit and loss. The impairment loss recognized in the prior accounting
period is reversed to the extent of increase in the estimate of recoverable amount. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying value of the impaired asset over its remaining useful life.

q) Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability

takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumst
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the




Milestone Gears Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial information are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial informations on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have

occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.
r) Inventories

Inventories which comprises of finished goods, raw material, packing material and stores and spares are carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

] Raw materials and packing material: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined using weighted average method.

. Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of fixed manufacturing overheads
based on the normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods is determined using weighted average method.

° Stores and spares: Cost includes cost of purchase, conversion cost and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined using weighted average method.

. Scrap is valued at estimated realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written down below cost except in cases where
material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realizable value.

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on item by item basis.
s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, bank balances and short-term deposits, as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

t) Cash flow statements

The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7, “Statement of Cash Flows”
whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating
cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.

u) Segment Reporting

As per the compliance of Ind AS 108 operating segments are identified based on reports reviewed by CODM (chief operating decision-maker).
Operating segments can either be based on products/services or on geographical basis. It is reported in a manner which is consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the judgment of CODM.

v) Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date

Impact of events occurring after the balance sheet date that provide additional infi ion materially effecting the determination of the amounts
relating to conditions existing at the balance sjeet date are adjusted to respeci iabiliti

(
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w) Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. In May 2025, MCA notified amendments to Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign

Exchange Rates, applicable w.e.f. 01 April 2025. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has
determined that it does not have any impact in its balance sheet.

\
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Milestone Gears Private Limited

CIN : U29130HP1984PTC005831

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in ¥ in millions, unless otherwise stated)

4 Capital work-in-progress

W

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

As at
1 April 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 487.14 225.69 126.90
Addition 292.32 262.80 132.99
Disposal (76.30) - -
Transferred to property, plant & equipment (378.14) (1.35) (34.20)
Balance at the end of the year 325.02 487.14 225.69
Capital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2025
Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 1-2 year 2.3 years More than 3
year years
Projects in progress 207.48 69.18 47.66 - 324.32
Projects temporarily suspended 2 - - 0.70 0.70
As at 31 March 2024
Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 12 year i caTs More than 3
year years
Projects in progress 313.54 80.20 16.40 - 410.14
Projects temporarily suspended - - 77.00 77.00
As at 01 April 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 12 year 2:3 years More than 3
year years
Projects in progress 131.20 21.80 - - 153.00
Projects temporarily suspended - - 72.69 72.69

(i) There are no project whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan during the financial year 2024-25, 2024-23
(ii) Borrowing costs:- The amount of borrowing costs added in capital work-in-progress during the year ended 31 March 2025 Z 11.89 million (31

March, 2024:% 23.1 million and 01 Aprit 2023: Z 2.76 million. ).

Intangible assets

Gross Block

Deemed Cost as at 1 April 2023
Additions

As at 31 March 2024

Additions

As at 31 March 2025

Accumulated amortization

As at 1 April 2023
Amortization charge for the year
As at 31 March 2024
Amortization charge for the year
Disposals

As at 31 March 2025

Net carrying amount
As at 01 April 2023

As at 31 March 2024
As at 31 March 2025

Product
development Softwares Total
cost

- 3.53 3.53

- 1.40 1.40

- 4.93 4.93

69.53 0.07 69.60

69.53 5.00 74.54

- 1.60 1.60

- 1.60 1.60

98317 1.22 10.59

9.37 2.82 12.19

- 3.53 3.53

= 3.33 3.33

60.16 2.18 62.34

(i) On transition to Ind AS (i.e. 1 April 2023), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of other intangible assets measured as per
the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of other intangible assets

ii.) No Intangible assets are pledged as security by the Company.

iii.)The Company has not revalued its Intangible Assets as on each reporting year and therefore Schedule I11 disclosure requirements with respect to

fair value details is not applicable.

(
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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6 Intangible assets under development

Deemed Cost as at 1 April 2023 &

Additions -
As at 31 March 2024

Additions 355.23
Capitalized dunng the year (69.53)
As at 31 March 2025 285.70

Intangible assets under development ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2025

Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 \3ivenr 2.3 years More than 3
year years
Projects in progress 285.70 - - - 285.70

Projects temporarily suspended

As at 31 March 2024

Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 it Sy rars More than 3
year years
Projects in progress - - o b x
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
As at 01 April 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 e 2-3 years More than 3
year years

Projects in progress

Projects temporarily suspended

Note:

(i) There are no project whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan as at 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024 and

1 April 2023.

<This page intentionally left blank>
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All

are in T in millions, unless otherwise stated)

1/

<o

-1

Investments
As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

Non current investments

Investments carried at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTO

Unquoted instruments

6,850 (31 March 2024 6,850, 1 April 2023 6,850)compulsory convertible 3583 3230 3049
preference preference shares of Polycycl Private Limited (Face value 2 10 each (31

Other Investments-Unquoted

Investment in Kotak Alternate Opportumity (India) Fund 0.87 0.31 0.09
Total 36.70 32.61 30.58
Notes:-

(1) The company had invested in 6,850 0.0001% compulsory convertible preference shares of Polycycl Private Limited. The charge during the year ended 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024 and 01
April2023 represents fair value change These investments are designated as FVTOCI as they are not held for trading purpose

Other financials assets
As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current

Carried at amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good
Fixed bank deposits (refer note 111}

70 48 - 10.00 - - -
Interest accrued on fixed bank deposits (refer note 1v) 004 - 0l1 - -
Security deposits 44 4] - 81.60 - 54.00 -
Other receivables - 007 - - - -
Receivables from related party = - - - - 018
Total 114.93 0.07 91.71 - 54.00 0.18

(1) There are no deposits due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any deposits are due from firm or any private companies
respectively in which any director 1s a partner, a director or a member other than stated above

(1) Refer note 16 for charge created on current assests as security against borrowings

(1i1) During the FY 2024-25, security deposits paid to TATA capital for lease financing of plant & machinery amounting to ¥ 67 98 million has been converted into fixed bank deposits There 1s
a lien on these fixed deposits in favor of TATA capital Further, during FY 2024-25, a bank guarantee in the form of fixed bank deposits amounting to ¥ 2 50 million has been given to Adani
Indian O1l for gas pipeline connection. Though the remaining maturity of these fixed bank deposits are less than 12 months, however due to restrictions of access to these funds the same has
been classified as non-current

(1v) Interest accrued on fixed bank deposits pertains to above fixed bank deposits on which there 1s a lien from the bank Hence, the same has been shown as non-current due to restriction of
access of these interest amount

Non-current tax assets (net)
As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Advance tax/TDS deducted (net of provision for income tax) - 211 -
Income tax refund receivable* 727 727 123
Total 7.27 9.38 7.23
* Income Tax refund receivable includes TDS deducted or advance income tax paid for the AY 2016-17 till AY 2023-24 for which refund 1s pending from income tax department on account of
rectification after the favorable appellate effects
Other assets
As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current
Balance with government authorities 2 64 68 ° 4435 = 140.01
Export incentives - 1174 o 575 = 11.96
Advance given to employees P 169 - 079 - 110
Prepaid expenses o 14 26 - 445 - 385
Advances to suppliers - 5551 - 1985 - 5931
Less' Loss allowance for bad and doubtful advances - -889
Captal advances 101 99 - 11725 - 178 63 -
Amount paid under protest - - 091 - - -
Others (refer note (11)) - - - 238 - -
Total 101.99 138.99 118.16 71.57 178.63 216.23

(1) Refer Note 16 for charge created on current assests as security against borrowings
(i1) Others represents excess of contribution in gratuity fund invested with Life Insurance Corporation of [ndia (LIC) over present obligation of gratuity for the year
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11 Inventories (at the lower of cost and net realisable value)

As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Raw matenals 32163 25177 30078
Work-in-progress 688 06 52248 54002
Finished goods 351 76 191 51 31908
Packing matenial 185 12:32 401
Stores and spares 29139 334 56 174 02
Scraps 14 43 14.07 819
Total 1,669.12 1,326.71 1,346.10
(1) Refer Note 16 for charge created on inventories as security against borrowings
(1) During the year ended 31 March 2025, ¥ Nil (31 March 2024: % Nil) was recogmised as an expense for inventories
12 Trade receivables
As at As at As at

Carried at amortised cost

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

1 April 2023

Trade receivables (unsecured, considered good) 1,459 07 1,408 51 1,643 08
Less' Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) (Unsecured, considered good) (22 83) (3047) (24 67)
Total 1,436.24 1,378.04 1,618.41
Trade receivables ageing as at 31 March 2025

o] ding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Current but not | Less than 6 6 months - 1 1-2 Years |2-3 Years More than 3 years Total

due® months year

Undisputed — considered good 965 42 454 00 13.25 1548 4.26 6.66 1,459.07
Total 965.42 454.00 13.25 15.48 4.26 6.66 1,459.07
Trade receivables ageing as at 31
March 2024

OQutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars larrent but not due pss than 6 mont € m::;l:s 2 1-2 Years |2-3 Years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed — considered good 903 23 459 58 2859 13.26 320 0.66 1,408.51
Total 903.23 459.58 28.59 13.26 3.20 0.66 1,408.51
Trade receivables ageing as at 1
April 2023

(o] ding for following periods from due date of payment
Particul. o

AL urrent but not due pss than 6 mont o mt;:;l:s ] 1-2 Years |2-3 Years More than 3 years Total

Undisputed — considered good 1,059 85 560 25 18 42 3 69 087 1,643 08
Total 1,059.85 560.25 18.42 3.69 0.87 - 1,643.08
Notes -

(1) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or

(1) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 30 to 90 days

(u1) Refer Note 16 for charge created on trade receivables as security against borrowings

(1v) The Company's exposure to credit and currencies risks, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 37 (B)
(v) There are no unbilled receivables, hence the same 1s not disclosed in ageing schedule

(vi) As at 31 March 2025, trade receivables include % Nil (31 March 2024 ¥ 5 54 mullions, 1 April 2023 % 5 96 millions) due from related parties.

<This page intentionally left blank=>
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13

14

Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Cash on hand 038 025 066
Balances with banks
- in Current accounts 001 001 753
Total 0.39 0.26 8.19
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Cash on hand 038 025 066
Balances with banks
- i Current accounts 001 0.01 753
0.39 0.26 8.19
Equity share capital
a a As at As at As at
1
Anthorised share capita 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
3,000,000 ( 31 March 2024 3,000,000, 1 April 2023 3,000,000) equity shares of X 10 each) 3000 30.00 3000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
3,000,000 (31 March 2024 3,000,000, 1 April 2023 3,000,000) equity shares of X 10 each) 30.00 3000 3000
(a) Reconciliation of the shares ding at the b and at the end of the reporting period
Equity shares As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
{umber of share Amount lumber of share Amount Number of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 30,00,000 3000 30,00,000 3000 30,00,000 30.00
Issue of equity share capital - S o B
At the end of the year 30,00,000 30.00 30,00,000 30.00 30,00,000 30.00

(b) Terms/ rights attached to shares

Equity shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 2 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares 1s entitled to one vote per share There is no restriction on distribution of
dividend The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Equity shares of T 10 each fully paid As at As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Number of . Y Number of . . 5

Namelof e harehclder - % holding Ve | % holding Number of shares % holding
Ashok Kumar Tandon 17,49,900 5833% 17,49,900 5833% 17,49,900 58.33%
Aradhna Tandon 2,50,250 8.34% 2,50,250 834% 2,50,250 8.34%
Aman Tandon 4,99,880 16 66% 4,99,780 16.66% 4,99,780 16.66%
Amit Tandon 2,49,770 833% 2,49,770 8.33% 2,49,770 833%
Gagandeep Kaur Chawla 2,50,100 8 34% 2,50,100 8 34% 2,50,100 8.34%

29,99,900 100.00% 29,99,800 99.99% 29,99,800 99.99%

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents

both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares

No bonus shares, fresh equity shares issued for consideration other than cash and buy backs have been made by the Company in the previous five years immediately preceding the reporting

year

{(d) Details of shares held by the promoters:
Shares held by promoters as at 31 March 2025

Promoter name

Ashok Kumar Tandon
Aman Tandon
Total

Shares held by promoters as at 31 March 2024
Promoter name
Ashok Kumar Tandon

Aman Tandon
Total

No. of shares at Change No. of shares at % Change during the
the beginning of  during the the end of the % of Total Shares year
the year year year
17,49,900 - 17,49,900 5833% 0.00%
4,99,780 100 4,99,880 16 66% 0.02%
22,49,680 100 22,49,780 75.00% 0.0%
No. of shares at Change No. of shares at % Change during the
the beginning of  during the the end of the % of Total Shares year
the year year year
17,49,900 - 17,49,900 58.33% 0.00%
499,780 - 4,99,780 16.66% 0.00%
22!495680 74.99% 0.00%
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15 Other equity

(A) Retained earnings

Opening balance

Profit for the year

Transferred from other comprehensive income/ (loss) (net of taxes)
Closing balance

( B) Other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of post employment benefit obhigation
Opening balance

Remeasurement (loss)/gain of post employment benefit plan
Transferred to retained earnings

Closing balance

(C)Other reserve

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
Opening balance

Changes during the year (net of taxes)

Closing balance

Total other equity (A+B+C)

Nature and purpose of reserves
a) Retained earnings

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

As at
1 April 2023

1,011.09 939 07 796 46
220 64 6720 140 65
(2.04) 482 196
1,229.69 1,011.09 939.07
(2.04) 482 196
204 (4 82) (1.96)
(0.11) (1.63) .
306 1.52 (1.63)
2.95 (0.11) (1.63)
1,232.64 1,010.98 937.44

Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has earned/incurred uill date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders Retained

earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss

b) Other reserves

Other reserves primarily comprise the cumulative net change in fair value of investments in mutual funds and preference shares that are designated at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income (FVOCI) These amounts will be reclassified to retained earnings upon disposal/realization of the respective investments

<This page intentionally left blank>
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in ¥ in millions, unless otherwise stated)
16 Borrowings

As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current

Secured
Term Loan from banks and financial institutions 854 31 - 1,027 02 - 1,291.99 -
Cash credit - 1,742.03 - 1,652.20 - 1,426 33
Letter of credit/bill discounting - 296.94 - 74 96 - 98 34
Current maturity of long-term loans < 401 41 - 398 27 - 351577,
Unsecured - -
Loan from related party = 63 81 - - - =
Letter of credit/bill discounting 369 07 - -

854.31 2,873.26 1,027.02 2,125.43 1,291.99 1,876.44
Note:
(1) The above amounts are net of unamortized borrowing cost
(1) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained
Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings :
Nature of security Terms of repayment
Rupee term loan from banks and includes:
(i) HDFC Bank Term Loan -X 200 millions
- Outstanding Loan of ¥ 83 8 mullions as on 31st March 2025 (31st March 2024 X 117.38 millions)
- Hypothecation/Mortgage of the all movable including plant, machinery and equipment/immovable property acquired/to be acquired|
(except movable assets of unit-8 and specifically charged to SBI / ICICI Bank for their TL and MFA acquired out of TL-2 of HDFC Bank)
~836 under the project scheme
- Extension of First Charge by way of hypothecation in favour of HDFC Bank of all the borrower leasehold rights over the immovable|
properties of the borrower situated at industrial area,barotiwala,Distt Solan (HP) bearing Plot No 8 admeasuring 2210 sq. metres including|
factory building and structure thereon (Unit-III) Rate of Interest : 3M MCLR+1.75% p.a
- Extension of First Charge by way of mortgage in favour of HDFC Bank of all immovable properties of the borrower both present and Repayable in 7 years including | year of
future situated at Barotiwala Dist Solan Himachal Pradesh bearing Khata no97/13 Khasra no417/6 (min 1-14), 418/6 (min 1-13) moratorium period
admeasuring 3 bighas 7 biswa including factory shed building and structure thereon (Unit-1V)
- Extension of First Charge by way of equitabie mortgage of ble property d at Barotiwala Distt Solan (H P ) bearing Khasra
No. 463/391/3, admeasuring 1 Bigha 17 Biswas including factory shed, building and structure thereon (Unit -VII)
- Guarantee: Irrevocable and unconditional personal guarantee of Shri Ashok Kumar Tandon & Mr Aman Tandon The guarantee shall be
oint and several
(ii)) HDFC Bank Term Loan - ¥ 220 millions
- Outstanding Loan of 121 86 millions as on 31st March 2025 (31st March 2024 % 166.24 millions)
- First Parri passu charge - Land and Building at Plot no 8, Industrial Area, Barotiwala Measuring 2210 sq mtrs in the name of the
company & Property of Unit VII at khasra no 463/391/3, Barotiwala, measuring 1 bigha-17 biswa
- All immovable fixed assets of the company (both present & future), situated at Barotiwala, dist Solan bearing Khata no 97/13 Khasa No
417/6 ,418/6 admeasuring 3 Bigha 7 Biswa including Factory Shed, building & Structure thereon (Unit 4) :
- Second Part Passu Charge for the above secunties in favour of all WC Lenders under consortium including us and only ICICI Bank as a eI NEL A o pe
e Tl s Repayable in 6 years including | year of
-Personal guarantee of Shr1 Ashok Kumar Tandon & Mr Aman ozcitilpeaicd

-All Moveable Fixed Assets (except Moveable Assets of Unit 8 and Specifically Charged to SBI/ICICI Bank for their TL and MFA Acquired
out of TL-2 of HDFC Bank

- Second Parr1 passu charge on entire current asset for the company

- Negative Lein on Commercial Property situated at Sec-5 Panchkula, Haryana

(iii) HDFC Bank Term Loan - ¥ 290 millions

- Outstanding Loan of ¥ 229.62 mullions as on 31st March 2025 (3 st March 2024 Z 273.79 mallions)

- First Par1 Passu Charge on Factory Land & Building situated in Ludhiana

- Exclusive charge by way of equitable mortgage on the Industrial Freehold property in Industrial Area Panchkula

- Movable Fixed assets - Exclusive Charge on Machines / Machinery Unit 9 being funded by Term Loan - Unit 9 & Others and Second Pari-
Passu charge on the entire movable fixed assets {except movable assets of unit-8 and specifically charged to SBI / ICICI Bank for their FL,
MFA of Unit - 9 spectfically charged to SBI and MFA acquired out DfTL-2 of HDFC Bank)

- Subservient Charge on all Current Assets and Moveable Fixed Assets of the borrower (Both Present & Future)

- Negative lien on Commercial property situated at Sec- 5 Panchkula, Haryana

-Personal Gurantee of the promoters (i) Mr. Ashok Kumar Tandon (i1) Mr. Aman Tandon

Rate of Interest - 8 59%
Repayable in 7 years including ! year of
moratorium period

(iv) HDFC Bank Term Loan -X 71.4 millions

- Outstanding Loan of Nil as on 3 1st March 2025 (3 1st March 2024: 2 14 40 millions)

- Primary Security

- Subservient charge on all the Current and Movable Fixed Assets of the borrower (both present and future)

- Exclusive Charge on Machines being fuded by TL-2 Rate of Interest  3M MCLR+1.75% pa
- Secondary Collateral Repayable in 6 years including | year of
- Exclusive Charge by way of E/M on the industrial freehold property in Ind] Area Panchkula, Haryana moratorium period

- Guarantee: lrrevocable and unconditional personal guarantee of Shn Ashok Kumar Tandon & Shn Aman Tandon The guarantee shall be
joint and several .

(v) HDFC Bank Term Loan (Guarantee Emergency Credit Line) -  139.2 millions
- Outstanding Loan of ¥ 108 05 mullions as on 3 1st March 2025 (31st March 2024 % 140 23 miilions)

- Term Loan under ECGLS, extention of second ranking charge over existing primary and collateral securities including mortgages created
in favour of the Bank

Rate of Interest . 1Y MCLR(9.25%)
Repayable in 6 years including 2 year of
moratorium period




Milestone Gears Private Limited

CIN : U29130HP1984PTC005831

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in ¥ in millions, unless otherwise stated)

(vi) HDFC Bank Term Loan (Guarantee Emergency Credit Line) - T 156 millions

- Outstanding Loan of 2 39 11 mullions as on 31st March 2025 (31st March 2024 % 78 22 millions)

- Term Loan under ECGLS, extention of second ranking charge over existing primary and collateral securities including mortgages created
in favour of the Bank

Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR + "Spread” p a
Repayable in 5 years including 1 year of
moratorium period

(vii) SBI Bank Term Loan - ¥ 80 millions
- Outstanding Loan of 2 7.99 mullions as on 31st March 2025 (3 !st March 2024:327 40 mullions)
- The company has been sanctioned as Open Term Loan of Rs 80 Mn for purchase of plant and machinery (estimated cost of Project 1s
11 00 cr) for which Hypothecation of fixed assets (plant and machinery) purchased out of OTL of Rs 80 Mn 1s made

- Hypothecation & First Pani Passu Charge with ICICI Bank on Plant and machinery and Other Fixed Assets situated at Umit VIII
Barotiwala

-Equitable mortgage and !st pan passu with [CICI Bank on Factory land and building measuring 07 bigha 16 biswas situated at K/K no
107/147, KH no 457/338/7/1,458/338/7/2 & 339/7 Village Barotiwala, Badd: (new shed unit IV}
- Equitable mortgage and 2nd charge on Factory land and building measuring 03 bigha situated umt IV (old shed) Village Barotiwala, Baddi
, Factory land and building measuring 2210.00 mtr situated at Plot 8 Village Barotiwala, Badd: , Factory land and building measuring 01
Bigha 07 Biswa situated at Village Barotiwala, Badd1
-Hypothecation and 2nd charge on all movable assets
1CICI Bank with 1st charge with Yes Bank
- Personal Gurantee of Sh. Ashok Kumar Tandon & Sh Aman Tandon

luding Plant and hinery and MFA (except in unit VIil) with HDFC Bank,

Rate of interest - 3M MCRL + 1%
Repayable in S years including 10 months
moratorium pertod

(viii) SBI Bank Term Loan ¥ 100 millions
- Outstanding Loan of 2 20 61 millions as on 31st March 2025 (31st March 2024 % 35 27 millions)
- Hypothecation of proposed Fixed Assets (P&M) purchased out of Bank Finance of Rs 100.00 millions Hypothecation & pari passu Ist
charge on Plant & Machinery & other Fixed assets situated at unit 8, Barotiwala, with ICICI Bank

-Equitable mortgage and 1st charge on Factory land and building measuring 07 bighas 16 biswas situated at K/K no 107/147, KH no
457/338/7/1,458/338/7/2 & 339/7 Village Barotiwala, Baddi (new shed unit IV)

-Equitable mortgage and 2nd charge Factory land and Building measuring 3 Bigha 7 Biswa situated at Unit 4, Barotiwala , E/m & 2nd
charge on Factory land and Building measuring 2210 Sq. Meters Biswa situated at Plot No 8 , Barotiwala Baddi , E/m and 2nd charge on
Factory land and Building measuning | Bigha 17 Biswa, situated at Barotiwala. , Hypothecation & 2nd charge on all movable assets
including Plant & Machinery & MFA (except in Unit VIII) with HDFC Bank and ICICI Bank with 1st charge with Yes Bank ,

-Personal Gurantee of Sh. Ashok Kumar Tandon & Sh. Aman Tandon

Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+1% p a
Repayable in 8 year including 1 year of morotorium
period

(ix) SBI Bank Term Loan ¥ 100 millions

- Outstanding Loan of ¥ 56 88 mullions as on 31st March 2025 (31st March 2024: % 73 55 mullions)

- Hypothecation of plant and machine, All parts of plant and machinery purchased from New Term Loan of Rs 100 millions to be installed
at Unit No. 4 & Unit No 8

-Hypothecation & pari passu 1st charge with Plant & Machinery 1 st parn-passu charge with ICICI Bank on plant & machine & fixed assets
situated at unit 8, Barotiwala, value Rs 7 28 crs ; Factory land and Building measuring 488 04 M, bearing survey no (Plot No. 58, situated
at plot no 58, Sector 1, Parwanoo , Factory land and building measuring 07 Bigha 16 Biswas situated at KK no 107/147, KH no
457/338/7/1,458/338/7/2 & 339/7 Village Barotiwal Baddi

-Equitable mortgage and 2nd charge Factory land and Building measuring 3 Bigha 7 Biswa situated at Unit 4, Barotiwala, , Hypothecation
& 2nd charge on all movable assets including Plant & Machinery & MFA (except in Unit VI1I) with HDFC Bank and ICICI Bank, st
charge 1s with SIDBI ; E/m & 2nd charge on Factory land and Building measuring 2210 Sq. Meters Biswa situated at Plot No 8 ,
Barotiwala, , E/m and 2nd charge on Factory land and Building measuring | Bigha 17 Biswa, situated at Barotiwala

-Personal Gurantee of Sh. Ashok Kumar Tandon & Sh. Aman Tandon

Rate of Interest 6M MCLR+1% p.a
Repayable in 7 years including 1 year of
morotorium period

(x) SBI Bank Term Loan ¥ 160 millions

- Outstanding Loan of T Nil as on 3 1st March 2025 (31st March 2024 Nil)

- First charge on Plant & Machinery & MFA of the firm against which the Bank has given the loan

- 2nd Charge on all the Movable Assets including P&M and MFA (except in Unit VIII ) with SIDBI , Part Passu 1st charge with Canara
Bank/HDFC Bank on the immovable property te. Plot No. 58 having total area measuring 488 84 sq trs at Industrial Area Parwaanoo Distt
Solan HP (Par Passu 1st charge with Canara Bank/HDFC Bank (For CC & TL)

-2nd charge on the Plot No. 8 having total area measuring 2210 sq mtr at Industnial Area Barotiwalaa Dist. Solan HP ; land measuring 3
Bighas & 7 Biswas (Unit [V of Milestone Gears Pvt. Ltd ) at village Barotiwala Khasra No -97/13.417/6,418/6, District Solan, HR (2nd
charge) ; 2nd charge on the land measuring 01 Bighas & 17 Biswas (Unit - VII of Milestone Gears Pvt Ltd ) at village Barotiwala, Khasra
No -463/391/3, District Solan H P (2nd charge) Ist charge is with SIDBI Pari Passu charge 1s with Canara Bank/ HDFC Bank (For CC and
TL)

- Equitable Mortgage of Immovable Property measuring 07 Bighas 16 Biswas at village Brotiwala, Khata No 107/147 Khasra no
458/338/7/2/3-15,339/7/4-0 and khata no 128/168 khasra no 457/338/7/1/0-2 Dist. Solan ,Himachal Prdesh , (For TL) , Charge on Plant
& Machinery & Fixed Assets situated at Unit-8,Barotiwala Hypothecation of Fixed Assets (For TL)

-Personal Gurantee of Sh. Ashok Kumar Tandon & Sh. Aman Tandon

Rate of Interest CRA Rating 1 e 4 70% above the
base rate
Repayable in 6 years

(xi) SBI Bank Term Loan ¥ 270 millions

- Outstanding Loan of ¥ 209 99 millions as on 31st March 2025 (3 1st March 2024 % 241 78 millions)
-Hypothecation of Fixed Assets (Plant & Machinery) purchased out of Bank Finance of 270 millions for the machinery installed at Unit
VI E/m & First pari passu with ICICI Bank on Factory land and building measuring 07 bigha 16 biswas situated at K/K no 107/147, KH
no 457/338/7/1,458/338/7/2 & 339/7 Village Barotiwala, Baddi (new shed unit IV)

-Hypothecation & |st Pari Passu with ICICI Bank on Plant and machinery 1 pari passu charge with ICICI Bank on plant and machinery &
other fixed assets situated at unit VIII Barotiwala

-Additional Collateral Security Sharing 1st Pari Passu charge with HDFC Bank over additional colletral security 1ie. Unit VI Factory Land &
Building situated at Ludhiana brought in to cover the fresh TL Exposure

- Equitable Mortgage & 2nd charge over Factory Land & Building measuring 3bighas situated at Barotiwala Badd: , Factory Land &
Building measuring 2210 sq mitrs situated Plot No. 8 Village Barotiwala Badd: , Factory Land & Building measuring 01 Bighas 7 biswas
situated Village Barotiwala Badd:

- Hypothecation & 2nd charge on all movable assets including Plant & Machinery & MFA (except in Unit VIII) with HDFC Bank, ICICI
Bank with 1st charge with Yes Bank

-Personal Gurantee of Sh. Ashok Kumar Tandon & Sh. Aman Tandon

AN

Rate of Interest | 3M MCLR+1% pa
Repayable in 7 years after moratoroum of 9 months
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Milestone Gears Private Limited

CIN : U29130HP1984PTC005831

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in_T in millions, unless otherwise stated)

(xii) SBI Bank (Guarantee Emergency Credit Line) -X 58 millions
- Outstanding Loan of INR 13.23 mullions as on 3 1st March 2025 (3 1st March 2024 INR 27 75 millions)
- GECL facility 1s secured by NCGTC cover and along with that GECL facility has second charge on all existing First Charge Primary and
Collateral Securities
-Equitable mortgage and 2nd charge Factory land and building measuring 03 bigha situated unit IV (old shed) Village Barotiwala, Badd: ,
Factory land and building measuring 2210 00 mtr situated at Plot 8 Village Barotiwala, Badd:. , Factory land and building measuring 01
Bigha 07 Biswa situated at Village Barotiwala, Baddi
-Hypothecation and 2nd charge on all movable assets including Plant and machinery and MFA (except in umit VIII) with HDFC Bank, ICICI
Bank with st charge with YES Bank

-Personal Guarantees of Ashok Kumar Tandon and Aman Tandon

Rate of Interest 6M MCLR+1% pa
Repayable in 5 years including 1 year of
moratorium period

(xiii) SBI Bank (Guarantee Emergency Credit Line) - ¥ 104.5 millions
- Outstanding Loan of INR 67.47 millions as on 31st March 2025 (3 1st March 2024 INR 93 61 muillions)
- GECL facility is secured by NCGTC cover and along with that GECL facility has second charge on all existing First Charge Primary and
Collateral Securities
-Equitable mortgage and 2nd charge Factory land and building measuring 03 bigha situated unit IV (old shed) Village Barotiwala, Badd: ;
Factory land and building measuring 2210 00 mitr situated at Plot 8 Village Barotiwala, Badd: , Factory land and building measuring 01
Bigha 07 Biswa situated at Village Barotiwala, Baddi

-Hypothecation and 2nd charge on all movable assets including Plant and machinery and MFA (except in unit VIII) with HDFC Bank,
ICICI Bank with 1st charge with YES Bank
-Personal Guarantees of Ashok Kumar Tandon and Aman Tandon

Rate of Interest 6M MCLR+1% p a
Repayable in 6 years including 2 year of
moratorium period

(xiv) YES Bank (Guarantee Emergency Credit Line) - ¥ 50 millions
- Qutstanding Loan of % 12 60 millions as on 3 1st March 2025 (31st March 2024: % 25 20 millions)
- Term Loan under ECGLS, Second Charge on exiting Charge on All Current Asset (Both present & future)

- Second Charge on existing charge on Specific Moveable Fixed Asset (Other MFA)* {*Other Movable Fixed Asset includes all the
Movable Fixed Assets except in unit 8 and specifically charged to Term Lenders for their Term Loan } , Immoveable property plot no 58 ,
industrial area Sector 1 parwanoo (Unit 1) Solan Himanchal Pradesh , Immoveable property situated at plot no 8 , industrial area Barotiwala
(Unit 3) , Immoveable property Khasra no 97/13 , 417/6, 418/6 Village Barotiwala Baddi District Solan HP (Unit 4 -Old Shed), ,
Immoveable property Khasra no 463/391/3 Village Barotiwala (Unit 7) , Inmoveable property (Land and Building) situated at
Rajgarh,Ludhiana (Unit 6} of the borrower

- Gurantor. 100% Guarantee coverage by National Credit Guarantee Trustee Company (NCGTC)
- Second Charge on Current Assets financed through the additional WCTL

Rate of Interest  3M MCLR+0 4% p a Max of
925%
Repayable in 5 years including | year of
moratorium period.

(xv) YES Bank (Guarantee Emergency Credit Line) - ¥ 19 millions

- Outstanding Loan of ¥ 4 79 millions as on 3 st March 2025 (31st March 2024 2 9.58 mullions)

- Term Loan under ECGLS, Second Charge on exiting Charge on All Current Asset (Both Present & Future)

- Second charge on existing charge on Specific Moveable Fixed Asset including Plant & Machinery & other MFA (Except in unit 8 and
specifically charged to SBI/ICICI Bank for their Term Loan & Movable Fixed Assets acquired out of TL of INR 71 41 Mn from HDFC
Bank) , Way of Mortgage on the leasehold rights of Inmoveable property situated at Plot no 58 , industrial area Sector 1 parwanoo (Unit 1)
, Immoveable property plot no 8 , industrial area Barotiwala (Unit 3) , Immoveable property Khasra no 97/13 , 417/6, 418/6 Village
Barotiwala (Unit 4 -Old Shed) , Inmoveable property Khasra no 463/391/3 Village Barotiwala (Unit 7) ; Immoveable property Land and
Building situated at Rajgarh,Ludhiana (Unit 6) of the borrower

- Gurantor. 100% Guarantee coverage by National Credit Guarantee Trustee Company (NCGTC)

- Second Charge on Current Assets financed through the additional WCTL

Rate of Interest : 3M MCLR+0 6% p a
Repayable in 5 years including 1 year of
moratorium pernod

(xvi) YES Bank (Guarantee Emergency Credit Line) - ¥ 46.1 millions
- Outstanding Loan of ¥ 33 94 mullions as on 31st March 2025 (31st March 2024 % 45 58 millions)
- Term Loan under ECGLS, Second Charge on exiting Charge on All Current Asset (Both present & future)
- Second Charge on existing charge on Specific Moveable Fixed Asset (Other MFA)* {*Other Movable Fixed Asset includes all the
Movable Fixed Assets except in unit 8 and specifically charged to Term Lenders for their Term Loan } , Immoveable property plot no 58 ,
industrial area Sector 1 parwanoo (Unit 1) Solan Himanchal Pradesh , Immoveable property situated at plot no 8 , industrial area Barotiwala
(Unit 3) , Immoveable property Khasra no 97/13 , 417/6, 418/6 Village Barotiwala Baddi District Solan HP (Uit 4 -Old Shed),
Immoveable property Khasra no 463/391/3 Village Barotiwala (Unit 7), Immoveable property (Land and Building) situated at
Rajgarh,Ludhiana (Unit 6) of the borrower

- Gurantor' 100% Guarantee coverage by National Credit Guarantee Trustee Company (NCGTC)

Rate of Interest 3M MCLR+03%pa
Repayable in 6 years including 2 year of
moratorium period

(xvii) ICICI Bank Term Loan¥ 100 millions
- Outstanding Loan ofZ 19 60 millions as on 31st March 2025 (31st March 2024 Z 33 99 millions)
- Primary Secunity for Rupee Term Loan 3- Movable FA created out of disbursement of Term Loan (RTL-3)

- Collateral for Rupee Term Loan 3-Industrial Property Unit 4- Unit IV Address- 7Bighas 16 Biswas at Barotiwala (HP) Khata No
107/147, Khasra No 458/338/7/2/3-15,339/7/4-0 and Khata No 128/168, Khasra No 457/338/7/1/0-2 , Plant & Machinery And Fixed
Assets at Unit 8 Barotiwala
- Collateral for Rupee Term Loan 3- Charge on Land & Building at Plot No. 8, Industrial Area Barotiwala Distt Solan (Unit No 3), All
Movable Assets including P&M and MFA (Except in Unit-8), Land measuring 01 Bighas & 17 Biswas (Unit- VII of Milestone Gears Pvt
Ltd ) at Village Barotiwala , Land measuring 3 Bighas & 7 Biswas (Unit 4 Old Shed) at Vilage Barotiwala

- Unconditional & Irrevocable Personal/Corporate Gurantee of- Aman Tandon and Ashok Kumar Tandon

Rate of Interest | 1Y MCLR+"Spread" p a
Repayable in 7 years
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in_T in millions, unless otherwise stated)

(xviii) ICICI Bank Term Loan X 160 millions
- Outstanding Loan of Nil as on 3 1st March 2025 (3 1st March 2024 Nil)
- Primary Security (for Term Facilities)- Movable Fixed Asset (Charge on the Fixed Assets created out of disbursement of Term Loan from ICICI Bank)
, Hypothecation of the movable fixed assets including P&M & MFA (Except in UNIT VIII).

- Collateral (for Term Loan)- Second Pari Passu (First Charge is with SIDBI & second charge to be shared with SBI) -E/M of the leasehold rights of
the properties situated at Plot No. 8 Industrial Area Barotiwala Dis. Solan HP measuring 2210 Sq Mtrs. ; E/M of the Immovable Property at Khasra No.

463/391/3 Barotiwala measuring | Bighah 17 Biswas ; E/M of the Inmovable Property measuring 3 bighas 7 biswas at khata no. 97/13, Khasra no. R Ra;; °,f h;terest :_IYI I::_CU;* Sprefad Pid
417/6 418/6 at Barotiwala,Solan ; 07 Bighas 16 Bisswas at village Barotiwala Khata No. 107/147, Khasra No. 458/338/7/2/3-15,339/7/4-0 and khata | ~cPaya0ie in /years mciu l:g year ot moatonym
no. 128/168 Khasra No 457/338/7/1/0-2, Distt. Solan HP* PEOC,

- Movable First Pari Passsu Fixed, Charge Asset - First Pari Passu charge wih SBI on Plant & Machinery funded by the Bank at Unit No. 8 Barotiwala
by the way of Hypothecation
- As per the prescribed terms in Sanction letter it states " if personal gurantee is being accepted too as a security, then Personal Gurantors being Ashok
Kumar Tandon and Aman Tandon
(xix) Vehicle loans
- Outstanding Loan of 2 12.52 millions as on 3 st March 2025 (31st March 2024: Z 5.6 millions) Rate of Interest : 7.90%-9.10%

- Vehicle loans is secured by hypothecation of respective vehicles. Repayable in equated hly install over 5-7

years

(xx) HDFC Bank Cash Credit X 800 millions
- Outstanding Loan of ¥787.24 millions as on 3 1st March 2025 (31st March 2024:690.52 millions )
- First Pari Passu by way of E/m leasehold right of factory land & building situated at Plot no. 58 having total area measuring 488.84 Sq. mts at
Industrial area Parwanoo Distt. Solan (H.P.) in the name of Company.
- Second Pari Passu Charge on Land & Building at Plot no. 8 having total area measuring 2210 Sq. mts at Industrial Area Barotiwala District Solan(H.P)
; Immovable property situated at Unit-VII at vill. Barotiwala Khasara no. 463/391/3, admeasuring 1 Bighas and 17 Biswas ; on immovable Fixed Assets
(both present & future) of the company situated at Barotiwala Dist. Solan (H.P) bearing Khata No. 97/13, Khasa No. 417/6, (min 1-14), 418/6 (min 1-
13) admeasuring 3 bighas 7 biswa including factory shed building and structure thereon (Unit-I1V) ; Ratelofilnterestild.60¢
- Second Pari Passu Charge on entrie MFA (Except Movable Assets of Unit VIII)

- First Pari Passu charge by way of Hypothecation of Entire Current Assets of the company including the Stock, Work in Progess,Finished Goods,
Stores & Spares, Packing Material, Receivables of the company arising out of the bonafide trade transactions.

-Personal Guarantees of the promoter Ashok Kumar Tandon and Aman Tandon.

(xxi) SBI Bank Cash Credit ¥ 575 millions

- Outstanding Loan of Z 531.77 millions as on 3 1st March 2025 (3 Ist March 2024: Z 481.52 millions)

- Parri Passu hypothecation of entire current assets of the firm, present & future, including all types of stock stores in the factory & godown at various
places & receivables arising out of all bonafide transactions

- Parri passu first charge with HDFC, ICICI, YES and SBI Bank for aggregate FBWC Limits of 1750 millions

- E/m & st Pari Passu charge on leasehold right of factory land & building situated at Plot no. 58 having total area measuring 488.84 Sq. mts at
Industrial area Parwanoo Distt. Solan (H.P.} in the name of Company.

- Equitable Mortgage & 2nd charge over Factory Land & Building measuring 3bighas situated at Barotiwala Baddi ; Factory Land & Building measuring
2210 sq. mtrs situated Plot No. 8 Village Barotiwala Baddi ; Factory Land & Building measuring 01 Bighas 7 biswas situated Village Barotiwala Baddi.

- Hypothecation & 2nd charge on all movable assets including Plant & Machinery & MFA (except in Unit VIII) with HDFC Bank, ICICI Bank with
1st charge with Yes Bank.

-Personal Gurantee of Sh. Ashok Kumar Tandon & Sh. Aman Tandon

Rate of Interest : 8.50%-8.90%

(xxii) Yes Bank Cash Credit ¥ 525 millions

- Outstanding Loan of Z 423.02 millions as on 3 1st March 2025 (3 1st March 2024:  480.16 millions)

- First Parri Passu charge on all the Current Assets of the borrower (Both present & future).

- First Pari Pasu Charge by way of mortgage of immovable property situated on: Plot no 58, Industrial Area Phase I, Parwanoo (Umt -1 ) Solan
Himachal Pradesh

- Second Pari Pasu Charge by way of mortgage on: specific Movable Fixed Assets and other MFA *Other MFA includes all movable fixed assets except
in Unit-8 and specifically charged to Term Loan lenders for their term loan. ; I able Property Si d at Plot No. 8 Industrial Area Barotiwala (Unit
3) ; Immovable Property situated at Khasra No. 97/13, 417/6, 418/6, Village Barotiwala , Baddi Distt Solan Unit 4 old Shed ; immovable property
situated at Khasra No. 463/491/3, Village Barotiwala , Baddi Distt Solan Unit 7

- Unconditional and Irrevocable Personal Guarantees of Ashok Kumar Tandon and Aman Tandon to remain valid during the tenure of the credit
facilities.

Rate of Interest : 8.75%-9.75%

(xxiii) HDFC Bill discounting ¥ 300 millions
Outstanding Loan of Z 296.94 millions as on 31st March 2025 (Outstanding Loan of 274.96 millions as on 3 1st March 2024) Linked with T Bill 3 months
'Subervient charge on all current and movable fixed assets of borrower both present and future.

‘Exclusive charge by way of equitable mortgage on the industrial Freehold property of the company in the industrial area panchkula with proposed value
of Rs.100.0 Mn

'Personal guarantee of Mr.Aman tandon and Mr.Ashok.k Tandon. Tenor 120 days. ROI-as decided by the lendor at the time of disbursement.

(xxiv) Export Import Bank TL
Outstanding Loan of ¥ 226.56 millions as on 31st March 2025( Outstanding Loan of Z 31.50 millions as on 3 1st March 2024) Interest-MCLR(1YR)+0.25% P.A.

'Sanctioned Limit 240 millions ; Repayment-60 Equal Monthly Installment
-Exclusive Charge by way of hypothecation of machinaries financed out of EXIM BANK LOAN and Second Pari-Passu charge on the entire movable
fixed assets (both present & future) other than those exclusively charged to other lenders including EXIM BANK.

Personal Guarantee of Mr. Ashok Tandon & Mr. Aman Tandon

Unsecured

(xxv) SBI Electronic Vendor Finance ¥ 400 millions

‘Outstanding Loan of ¥ 278.86 millions as on 31st March 2025 91 days T bill 6.56% above 1.95
(xxvi) A. Treds Ltd ¥ 150 millions
‘Outstanding Loan of ¥ 90.21 as millions on 3 1st March 2025 Rate of Interest- 9.00%-9.80%

(xxvii) Loan from related party (unsecured)

"Outstanding Loan from director for % 63.81 millions as on 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: Nil) Interest free demand loan
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All are in T in millions, unless otherwise stated)

17 Trade payables

As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Trade payable
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) ,and (refer note 31) 2247 - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 73497 73299 954 21
Total 757.44 732.99 954.21
Trade payables 755.83 730.46 951.58
Trade payables to related parties 161 253 263
Trade payables ageing as at 31 March 2025
OQutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Total
Unbilled Cunr::::l:“' Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 years More than 3 years S
Total outstanding dues of micro and small
enterprises - 2247 - - - - 22.47
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 30.13
Al Bl e e 54122 151 89 353 264 556 734.97
Disputed dues of micro and small enterprises
Disputed dues of other than micro and small
enterprise = 2 = = = = o
Total 30.13 563.69 151.89 3.53 2.64 5.56 757.44
Trade payables ageing as at 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Total
Unbilled C“nr:::l:m Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 years More than 3 years i
Total outstanding dues of micro and small
enterprises 2 o = & o o o
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 515
UL 1] el s 48127 23235 757 329 336 732.99
Disputed dues of micro and small enterprises
Disputed dues of other than micro and small
enterprise - - - - - - -
Total 5.15 481.27 232.35 7.57 3.29 3.36 732.99
Trade payables ageing as at 01 April 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Current but Total
Unbilled s Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 years More than 3 years
Total outstanding dues of micro and small
enterprises i i L 5 5 i 3
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 13 27
micro and small enterprises 26,02 16284 g0 200 2:49 954.21
Disputed dues of micro and small enterprises i i i [ 1 I
Disputed dues of other than micro and small
enterprise o g - i z T =
Total 13.27 726.05 169.84 40.50 2.06 2.49 954.21
Notes:-
(1)Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 90 day terms
(n) For explanations on the Company’s liquidity risk management processes, refer to Note 37
18 Other financial liabilities
As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 12.55 1530 17 .60
Caputal creditors 0.61 199 0.08
Other payables 19.45 2003 1522
Total 32.61 37.32 32.90

)

A

' ) g = ;
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=




Milestone Gears Private Limited

CIN: U29130HP1984PTC005831
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19 Provisions

Provision for gratuity (refer note 38)
Prowvision for compensated
Total

20 Other current liabilities

Advances from customers
Statutory dues payable
Total

2

-

Current tax liabilities (net)

Current tax habilities (net of advance tax and TDS)
Total

As at
31 March 2025

As at

31 March 2024

As at
1 April 2023

Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current
735 - - - 680 -
983 430 10.47 411 10 55 407
17.18 4.30 10.47 4.11 17.35 4.07
As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
790 13.94 1104
7.67 ORIl 6 88
15.57 23.05 17.92
As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
381 - 5.81
3.81 - 5.81

<This Page intentionally left Blank>
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(All amounts are in T in millions, unless otherwise stated)

22

23

Revenue from operations

. For the year ended  For the year ended
Revenue from contract with customers e ey i o
Type of goods and services
Sale of product 4,849.30 4,916.70
Sale of service 47.99 25.36
Total revenue from contracts with customers 4,897.29 4,942.06

Other operating revenue

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Duty Drawback and Export Benefit (refer note (1)) 13.53 14.47
Sale of scrap 390.87 376.71
Total 404.40 391.18
Total revenue from operations 5301.69 5333.24

(i) The Company is eligible for benefits under the Remission of Duties and Taxes on Exported Products (RoDTEP) scheme introduced by the Government of India. The
scheme aims to reimburse exporters for various embedded taxes and duties (such as electricity duty, fuel taxes, and other non-GST levies) that are not refunded through other
mechanisms. The benefit is provided in the form of electronic duty credit scrips, which are freely transferable and can be used to pay basic customs duty on future imports or
sold to third parties. The income is recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to the grant and that the grant
will be received. The scrips are measured at fair value at the time of recognition, typically based on their expected realizable value. For the year ended 31 March 2025, the

Company has recognized income of Z 5.49 million, (for the year ended 31 March 2024 : ¥ 3.91 million) from RoDTEP under Operating Revenue, upon fulfillment of the
conditions of the scheme and reasonable assurance of receipt.

a) Disaggregation of revenue

India 4,387.11 4,314.40
Outside India 510.18 627.66
Total revenue from contracts with customers 4,897.29 4,942.06

Performance obligations
Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:

b) Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point in time 4,849.30 4916.70
Services transferred at a point in time 47.99 25.36
Total revenue from contracts with customers 4,897.29 4,942.06

Sale of goods and services
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and completion of services

c) Reconciliation the of revenue recognized in the r d of profit and loss with the contracted
Revenue as per contract 4,937.98 4,949 81
Adjustments for variable consideration:

- Discounts and rebates 40.69 7.75
Total revenue from contracts with customers 4,897.29 4,942.06

d) Contract balances
Trade receivables* 1,436.24 1,378.04
Advances from customers** 7.90 13.94

*Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

**Advance from customers relates to payments received in advance of performance under the contract. Advances from customers are recognized as revenue as (or when) the
Company performs under the contract

Other income
For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost
- on fixed deposits 2.24 2.96
- on security deposits 5.16 3.15
Insurance Claim received* 461 0.70
Liabilities written back 0.04 -
Reversal of loss allowance 7.64 -
Gain on Foreign Exchange variation (net) 11.66 15.40
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress 134.59 3822
Rental income 1.26 1.26
Total 167.20 26.69

* Note : Pertains to insurance claim towards loss of fixed assets in fire on 10 September, 2024 in one of the unit of the company. See note (iii) below Note 3 - Property Plant
and Equipment
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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24 Cost of materials
a. Cost of raw materials and components consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year (net)

Less: inventory at the end of the year
Cost of raw material and components consumed

b. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and scrap

Opening balance
Finished goods
Work-in-progress
Scrap & waste

Total opening balance

Closing balance
Finished Goods
Work-in-progress
Scrap & Waste

Total closing balance

(Increase)/Decrease in inventory
Finished Goods

Work-in-progress

Scrap & Waste
(Increase)/Decrease in inventory

25 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense (refer note 39)
Compensated absences (refer note 39)
Staff welfare expenses

Total

26 Finance cost

Interest on
- Borrowings
- Lease liabilities
- Others
Bank charges
Total

27 Depreciation & amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 5)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 38)

Total

<This page intentionally left blank>

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
251.77 300.78
2,575.47 2.379.64
2,827.24 2,680.42
321.63 25\l
2,505.61 2,428.65
For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

191.51 319.08
522.48 540.02
14.07 8.19
728.06 867.29
351.76 191.51
688.06 522.48
14.43 14.07
1,054.25 728.06
(160.25) 127.57
(165.58) 17.54
(0.36) (5.88)
(326.19) 139.23
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
46721 502.68
2731 25.96
8.01 9.30
7.19 8.42
18.87 20.93
528.59 567.29

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

259.18 24597
26.65 20.01
5.24 0.50
1.06 2.15
292.13 268.63

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

304.56 270.09
10.59 1.60
90.29 61.75
405.44 333.44
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28 Other expenses

Consumption of loose tools
Consumption of stores and spares
Packing materials
Labour/Job work charges
Rent expenses
Repair & maintenance

- Buildings

- Plant & machinery

- Others
Vehicle running & maintenance
Power, fuel and water
Freight and forwarding expenses
Rates & taxes
Legal and professional fees
Travelling and conveyance

CSR activities & donation (refer details below Note it)

Payment to auditors (refer details below note i)
Marketing expenses

Balance written off

Bad debts written off

Loss allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Loss allowance for bad and doubtful advances
Security charges

Testing and calibration expenses

Printing and stationary

Insurance expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

@) *Payment to auditor:

As statutory auditor:
- Statutory audit fee
- Tax audit fee
- Out of pocket expenses
Total

(ii)  Details of CSR expenditure

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
515.12 366.21
17.93 18.60
82.12 63.00
593.82 514.20
25.00 24.38
34.07 3391
30.42 23.69
22.01 25.96
34.37 33.03
231.01 207.59
87.90 83.46
9.06 3.50
37.26 3727,
17.38 16.84
3.99 2.30
2.03 1.01
1.64 0.77
- 0.31
- 13.51
- 5.80
8.89 -
16.01 15.08
3.39 5.47
4.55 4.67
8.99 8.74
10.87 9.85
1,797.83 1,519.14
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
0.63 0.53
0.48 0.48
0.01 =
1.12 1.01

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), a Company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately
preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are occupational health, education and environment protection.

A CSR committee has been formed by the Company as per the Act. The funds were utilized throughout the year on these activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013.

For the year endéd  For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 3.30 2.86
Shortfall/(Excess) of the previous year carried forward as per sec 135 of the Companies Act 2013 - 0.55
Balance amount required to be spent during the year 3.30 341
b) Amount spent during the year* 3.35 2.30
¢) Shortfall/(Excess) at the end of the year out of the amount required to be spent by the Company during the year (0.05) 0472
d) Previous years shortfall spent during the year - -
e) CSR Spent out of the unutilised balance with CSR partner entity 0.08 -
f) Unutilised balance with CSR partner entity at the end of the year 0.47 0.55
g) Unspent amount transferred to government specified fund within 6 months - 0.72
h) The company has contributed CSR to other than related party*** 382 2.30

Details of CSR expenditure under section 135(5) of the Act in respect of other than ongoing projects**
For the year ended  For the year ended

Balance as at the beginning of the year

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

- 0.55
Amount required to be spent during the year 3.30 2.86
Amount spent during the year*# 3835 3.41
Shortfall/(excess) as at the closing of the year (0.05) -

* Amount spent during the year on purpose other than construction/acquisition of any asset.

** The company does not have ongoing projects as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

***For the year ended 31 March 2025 the company has contributed Z 3.99 millions inculding Z 0.72 millions deposited in PMNRF as per relevant provision of CSR Act. The
same has been considered in total amount spend for the FY 2023-24.

*#Amount spend during the year inculdes any amount paid to Government specified fund with in the six month from the financial year end date 31 March 2025: ¥ Nil and 31
March 2024: 2 0.72 millions.
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29 Income tax
The major components of income tax expense are:
(A) Statement of Profit and Loss section

For the year ended For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

(i) Current Tax

Current tax 51.67 43.15 64.65

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier period - - (0.26)

Deferred tax

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (for current year) (6.83) (6.80) (19.83)

Total income tax expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 44.84 36.35 44.56
(ii) Other comprehensive income (OCI) section

Deferred Tax

Tax on items recognized in OCI on remeasurement of defined benefit plan 0.68 (1.62) (1.03)
Tax on remeasurement of investment through OCI (1.03) (0.51) 0.85
Total income tax recognized in other comprehensive income (0.34) (2.13) (0.18)
(B) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate:

For the year ended For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

1 April 2023

Profit before tax 265.48 103.55 185.21
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.168% ( 31 March 2024 - 25.168%, 01 April 2023- 29.12%) 66.82 26.06 5393
Tax effect of:
Effect of tax in related to previous years (income tax) 0.00 0.00 (0.26)
Tax effect of income charged at different tax rate (25.98) 0.00 0.00
Impact of change in tax rate for future period 0.00 9.50 0.00
Effect of permanent differences 1.14 0.00 0.00
Impact of income exempt under income tax 1.16 0.00 0.00
Additional allowances/deductions under income tax 223 0.00 0.00
Effect of deferred tax created on timing difference for earlier years 0.00 0.00 9.11)
Others (0.53) 0.79 0.00
Income tax expense 44.84 36.35 44.56
Deferred tax Balance sheet Statement of profit and loss
As at As at As at ' Forthe year ended For theyearended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 59.82 57.08 54.12 PATK] 2.96 11.09
Security deposits 1.42 438 3.14 (2.95) 124 1.25
Loss allowance for bad and doubtful debts SN/ 8.05 8.63 (231 (0.58) 7.34
Loss allowance for bad and doubtful advances 224 i : 294 . ’
Bonus payable 3.62 3551 0.63 0.11 2.88 0.63
Revaluations of FVTOCI investments to fair
value (0.92) 0.11 0.72 (1.03) 0.61) 0.72
Right of use (85.54) (53.92) (61.36) (31.63) 7.44 29.71)
Leases liabilities 89.51 54.05 61.13 35.46 (7.08) 30.31
Borrowings 0.17) (0.24) (0.38) 0.07 0.14 0.14
Export incentives - (1.45) (2.89) 1.45 1.44 (2.89)
Provisions (including plan assets) 5.41 3.07 6.24 2.34 (3.17) 0.77
Deferred tax (expense)/income 6.49 4.68 19.65
Net deferred tax assets 81.14 74.65 69.98
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows: 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Deferred tax assets 167.76 130.26 134.62
Deferred tax liabilities (86.63) (55.61) (64.64)
Deferred tax assets (net) 81.14 74.65 69.98

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net):

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

1 April 2023

Opening balance 74.65 69.98 50.33

lax tncome/(expense) recognised tn protit or

e 6.83 6.80 19.83

Tax income/(expense) recognised in OCI (0.34) (2.13) (0.18)
Closing balance 81.14 74.65 69.98
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30 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following data reflects the inputs to calculation of basic and diluted EPS

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Profit attributable to equity shareholders (A) 220.64 67.19
Effect of dilution B, 5
Profit attributable to equity shareholders after effect of dilution (B) 220.64 67.19
Weighted average number of Equity shares in calculating Basic EPS (C) (refer note (i)) 9,00,00,000.00 9,00,00,000.00
Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution (D) (refer note (i)) 9,00,00,000.00 9,00,00,000.00
Calculation of earning per share

Nominal value per equity shares

Basic Earning per equity share attributable to owners of Company [In Z] [(A)/(C)] 245 0.75
Diluted Earning per equity share attributable to owners of Company [In Z] [(B)/(D)] 245 0.75

(i) The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 10 September 2025 and shareholders of the Company in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 13
September 2025 approved the sub-division of 3,000,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each into 15,000,000 equity shares of Z 2 each and issuance of bonus equity share of Z 2
each in the ratio of 5:1 for the Equity shares of % 2 each. The number of shares used for the calculation of earnings per share, and the earnings per share (including that in
the comparative periods), have been adjusted retrospectively pursuant to Paragraph 64 of Ind AS 33 - "Earnings Per Share", prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013. The basic and diluted Earning Per Share for the current period and comparative periods have been recalculated on the revised number of shares. This adjustment
does not impact the total equity or net profit reported for any period.

<This page intentionally left blank>
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31 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum number as allocated after filling the
Memorandum. Based on the information received and available with the Company. there are no dues outstanding to micro and small enterprises
(Suppliers) other than covered below under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as at , 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024
and 01 April 2023.

Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 based on the information available with the
Company

As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023

1) Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered
under MSMED Act:

Principal 2247 - -
Interest - - -
i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act,
2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year,

iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding
the interest specified under MSMED Act;

iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting
year; and

v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED H z 2
Act, 2006




90°TY6'Y 6T'L68'Y
99'LT9 8101¢
or vIEY 11°L8EY

P07 WIEN 1€

STOT W Ie W 1€

PIpud a8ak A 10y

souanpur Jueoyudis Suiaey 10 1521331 [BHUBISQNS Sutaey suosiad 10 SI0131IP YoIyM ul Amug (Auedwod g uondas) uouEpuUNO, BYSY 1§ HOYD
souanjur Juesgiudis FurAey 10 1S215)ul [eyURISGNS Fuiaey suosiad 10 1010311 Yorym ut Anug panutr] aeALl] [9K0A[04
souanpjur JueagtuBis Suiaey 10 Jsaielul [EHURISNS Butaey suosiad 10 $1030011p YoM ut Anug BYSY IS oY)

diysuoneay UIIIUOY) Y JO JUIEN

asuanpur JuedyIuBis 3AY SIANE[RA J13Y) 10 [Puuossad Juswddeurw A3y Yarym 1340 sastdaduy

1030an(] Fuideuely jo uog uopue] ypniuy

ueuuIey)) JO UoS uopue |, jiury

diysuoyelay jo dameN JAPE[IY JO dweN

I 43d ¥ W £2)] Jo saayepy

(szoz 1sndny §J'9'm) A1e1a100g Auedwo) y3uig JpuIyoy
(sz0Z 1808y ] 0)dn - p7oz 1snSny ¢ wioy) Aress1ssg Auedwo) e[jeyg idey
(5707 AInf 1 §9'M) 190YJQ [erOURUL] JOIYD) efenypng fesued
10)99MI(J 2ANNDIXF Inyey | rewny ysang

10pan( Swieuwep uopue |, uewy

ueuLIRYD) UOPUE ] Jewny YOysy
uonyeudisaQq [Puuossag Juswadeury A3 Y jo dweN

suosaad jesadeusw L3y
diysuonejaa Aaed pajejas pue sayaed pajepaa jo sawmey (e
: saansopastp Ayred pajepPy pg
1ejoL
e1puy 9pisInQ

eipu|
SIIWOISNI YIIM S)IBIJUOD WIO0I) INUIAIY

-:M0[3q Pa[IEIdP SI PUB P3JEd0] are Aueduio)) 3y} JO SISWIOISND YOIYM UI SESIE 3Y) UO PIseq St SHUSW3as/Suoneso] {eoryderfoan uo siseq sy U0 INUSARY

Siwowdog Funesad, 801 SV puf Jod se sjuowrdas

aqenodas ou are ey ‘2oudy “stonpoid uoisstwsuey Jead o Fuumoeynuew Z1A Juawdes ssoutsng Areuruid o[Fuls 91 “sjoym e se Aweduwio) dy) Jo suoneiado 3y SMIAAL NI, 1B UOISIIQ SuneiadQ JoyD) YL ‘801 SV (NI JO IX31U0d 3y3 U]

uoyenLIoju JudW3AS  ¢¢
swire[d se padpajmownior usaq Jou - uoneFNI| Xe ] MIAIIS puE SPOOD

160 89°¢

0861 0661 05°€9 swied se pagpajmooe uasq 10U - Uone3nI Xe) Suodu|
sapmiqet] Judaduyuo)) (g)
1sa10)u1 ynm Fuoje paaes Knp Jo Junowre ay) Aed 03 ajqer] 3q [im AuedwoD) sy ‘uonedqo 1Hodxa pare[al Ay JO JUIW(Y[NY JO JOUISqE P Ul #

COEES 8I0Ee LOICLL #hiounyoew pue yuerd jo woduwi JsureSe swayds DI 2y 1apun ‘podui Jo 3jep Anvadsas w0y ‘s1eak g Jo pouad e 1940 Po[[g|ny 2q 03 uonediqo uodxa Furpuesing
JuUDIWWOD) 13Y30

09tTl 0L'TS1 6016 (S35UBApE JO J3U) 10} PapIA0Id 10U PUE JUNEOdE [eNdes U PAINdaX3 3 0} FUILIEUISI SIDLHUOD JO JUNOLWE PIBWNST
€207 AV | pI0T Y2 M 1€ STOT WPIBN 1€ FTTEIECE]

je sy jE Sy je sy
spuuImwo)) (v)
SIVIIQEY JUITUYUO PUE SHUIULIWWO) 7€

(P210iS 2SIML2Y10 SSTUN ‘SUONTIU U 3 UT 241 SIUNOWD |1V)

SZ0Z YdARIA [§ PIPU? JBIL 31 10 SIUIWA)EIS [BIIUBULY 0) SAON
1€8500DLd¥86IdHOEI6ZN * NIO

PN ABALL] SIBIN) JUOISIATA



Jouuosiad [eusfeuew Koy 01 sjqeked uoneounwal sapnfoul SjqeAed SPeLl .

100 . -1100 $TOT WIEW [£ /_
iy B o= STOT W 1€ ByYSY 1S HOYD
S8LE 1€°C¢ 4 145 < $TOT YOI 1€
v8's€E ¥8'sE ° - o $T0T YO 1€ panw] areaud 19404104
© o 3 asuanpyur JuedLIuSS ISIIAXI 0} IQE ST JINY YIIYM 1340 sastadadjuy
ILo P 5 2| VAT $T0T YOIBN 1€
sso 3 o -|sso STOT YL 1€ dIN JO SaANe[Y
- s : X = $TOT YI'EN 1€
(4 ¥ . -|co0 STOT YW [ € e|[eyq nidey
®€o o v -|ceo $T0T YO 1€
340] g < - |S¥0 STOT YoreW 1€ anyey | rewns ysaug
8L°0 = 2 -|sco ¥Z0T YOI €
68'€9 = 18¢€9 - 1800 STOT YOIeN [ € uopue | uewy
Lo -liLo 20T YR 1€
IS0 = -liso STOT YoreW 1€ uopue] rewiny Joysy
«x(dIAD1) Ruuosaad jersadeusw Koy
B0 SIUIW)SIAU] Jqeieq uso JqEAIIIT PRI, J[qeie aped |, Papud I8} Aaed pajejas ay) Jo weN|
Ppud 1834 3y} J& B sadUB[Eq SUIpuLISINQ (3)
‘3ADQE PapN[oui udaq JOU Sy pue Aoym e se Aueduto) oy 10§ painduiod si saduasqe pajesuaduios pue A)mjeis 10§ UOISIAOL ‘SIJAUIQ YSBO-UOU ‘SILIE[es Sopn|oul [ouuosiad [eLad) A9y s Auedwio)) syj Jo uon dwo) ,
T = 2 o) =8 5 20T YOrBN 1¢
oro oro 3 =\ %= o
$TOT YOIRIN 1€ (Auedwiod g uoN29S) UOHEPUNO] BYSY IS oY)
- 9 5 3 s = $TOT WIEN 1€
= . 9 )| S F STOT YOI 1€ BYSY IS oY)
1€¢ SO'1 H 9T'1 d 3 $TOT YIBN 1€
8¢l o H 9T'1 = 3 STOT YOI 1€ paiwr] aleAuy [944[0d
Jduanyui JuBdIYIUSIS ISIIIIXI
0) 3[qE S1 J YINYM 140 sasradadyuy
9051 5 E ol | 90°51 $TOT YT 1€
8L 9 7 = = 8L STOT YOI 1€ dIN] JO SaAne[ay
i 5 = | = YTOT YO 1€
LLO 3 3 =l=5 LLO STOT W 1€ elieyg [idey
878 5 o O s 87’8 PTOT YN 1€
0s'8 i = = © 05’8 STOT Y9N (€ myey | rewny ysang
9061 5 2 o | S 90°S1 $T0T UYIBN 1€
L6'IL - 18€9 i | 91'8 STOT YTEN € uopue | uewy
9791 i o = == 9791 $T0T WEN 1€
91'8 5 & = 91'8 STOT YOI 1€ uopue ], fewnzi Yoysy
- - (dID1) 1Puuosad [eLiddeusw A2y
»UOLBIAUNWIL
(GLAR saseyoang udye) ueo| awodur YO S$)ISSE JO IBS JeL1a3BuUB Al Papuad 18ak 3y J0y Ayaed pajejal ay) Jo dweN

aeak ayy Suranp suondevsueay Kaed paepPy (q)

(P21031S 251M42Y10 SSOLUN ‘SUOY[IM U] 3 Ul 24D SIUROWD |]V)

ST0T YIHEJA [€ PIPU3 IBIA ) 10§ SJUIWIIE)S [E1IUBUY 0) SAON
1£8500D.LdP861JHOEI6ZN * NID

pajImy] ABALL SIBIT) JUOISIIA



Milestone Gears Private Limited

CIN: U29130HP1984PTC005831

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in T in millions, unless otherwise stated)

35 Financial instruments

(A) Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s fi

1 instr other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable
approximations of fair values:
Carrying value Fair value
As at As at As at As at As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023 Level
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Investments 36.70 32.61 30.58 36.70 32.61 30.58 Level 2
Financial assets at amortised costs
Security deposits 4441 81.60 54.00 44.41 81.60 54.00 Level 3
Fixed Bank Deposits 70.48 10.00 - 70.48 10.00 - Level 3
Interest accrued on fixed bank d 0.04 0.11 - 0.04 0.11 - Level 3
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Non current borrowings 85431 1,027.02 1,291.99 85431 1,027.02 1,291.99 Level 3
Non current lease liabilities 257.46 156.65 163.66 257.46 156.65 163.66 Level 3

1,111.77 1,183.67 1,455.65 1,111.77 1,183.67 1,455.65

The management has assessed that fair value of financial assets such as cash and cash equivalent, trade receivable, bank balances, other than cash and cash equivalent, short term borrowings,
short term lease liabilities, trade payables, other current financial liabilities and other current financial assets approximate their carrying amount largely due to short-term maturities of these

instruments.

Reconciliation of fair value ement of

Opening Balance
Re-measurement recognised in OC!
Closing Balance

(B

-

Fair value hierarchy

quoted in ts classified as FVTOCI assets

As at As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
3261 30.58 33.06

4.09 2.03 (2.48)

36.70 32.61 30.58

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets. This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted price in active market. This category consist of quoted equity

share and debt based open ended mutual funds,

Level 2: Valuation techniques with observable input. This level of hierarchy includes item measured using inputs other than quoted price included within Level 1 that are observable for such
items, either directly or indirectly. This level of hierarchy consists of debt based close ended mutual fund investments and over the counter (OTC) derivative contracts.

Level 3: Valuation techniques with unobservable inputs. This level of hierarchy includes items measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable input). Fair
value determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instruments

nor based on available market data. The main item in this category are unquoted equity instruments.

Valuation technique used for Level 3 investments

Fair valuation of the investment in preferences shares as at 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024 and 01 April 2023 have been determined using the Discounted Cash Flow method. The significant

unobservable input used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are long term growth rate for cash flows for subsequent years.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of company's financial assets and liabilities

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2025

Fair value ement using
Quoted prices in active Significant Significant
Total market observable inputs  observable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets at fair value through OCI
Investments 36.70 - 0.87 35.83
Financial assets at amortised costs
Security deposits 44.41 - - 44.41
Fixed Bank Deposits 70.48 - - 70.48
Interest accrued on fixed bank deposits 0.04 - - 0.04
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Non current borrowings 854,31 - - 85431
Non current lease liabilities 257.46 - - 257.46

There have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2 during year ended 31 March 2025

(
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3

3

6

~

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2024

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in active Significant Significant
Total market observable inputs  observable inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets at fair value through OCI
Investments 32.61 - 0.31 32.30
Financial assets at amortised costs
Security deposits 81.60 - - 81.60
Fixed Bank Deposits 10.00 - - 10.00
Interest accrued on fixed bank deposits 0.11 - - 0.11
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Non current borrowings 1,027.02 - - 1,027.02
Non current lease liabilities 156.65 - - 156.65
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2023
Financial assets at fair value through OCI
Investments 30.58 - 0.09 30.49
Financial assets at amortized costs
Security deposits 54.00 - - 54.00
Fixed Bank Deposits - - - -
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Non current borrowings 1,291.99 - - 1,291.99
Non current lease liabilities 163.66 - - 163.66
Capital management policies and objectives
For the purposes of Company’s capital g Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the
Company’s capital g is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and maximize shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
in light of changes in economic conditions and the requi nts of the fi ial c . The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made

in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less
cash and bank balances as detailed in the notes below. Further, total equity includes equity share capital and other equity.
The Net Gearing Ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

Gross Debt 4,083.17 3,367.15 3,378.36
Cash and Marketable 0.39 0.26 8.19
Securities
Net Debt (A) 4,082.78 3,366.89 3,370.17
Total Equity (As per Balance 1,262.64 1,040.98 967.44
Sheet) (B)
Total equity plus net debt (C) 5,345.42 4,407.87 4,337.61
=(A+B)
Net Gearing Ratio (A/C) 76.38% 76.38% 71.70%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2023.

Financial risk objective and policies
The company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables and Lease liabilities. The main purpose of these financial labilities is to finance the Company's
operations/projects .The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is mainly exposed to risks resulung from interest rate movements (interest rate risk) collectively referred as market risk, Credit risk and

Liquidity Risk. The Company's senior t oversees the management of these risks.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fl b of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate
risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and dity risk. Fi ial instr affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, debt and equity

investments and foreign currency receivables and payables. The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. The sensitivity of
the relevant profit and loss items is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as of 31 March 2025 and
31 March 2024.
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(i) Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fl

because of cl

changes in market interest rates relates primanily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

(ii)

Interest rate sensitivity:

ges in market i rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in interest rates on financial liabilities, i.e. floating interest rate borrowings in ¥ and USD. Interest rate
sensitivity has been calculated for borrowings with floating rate of interest. For borrowings with fixed rate of interest sensitivity disclosure has not been made. With all other variables held
constant, the company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on financial liabilities, as follows:

Parieoa As at| As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

Impact on Profit Before Tax due to change in Interest Rate
Increase by 0.5% 17.19] 15.60 (15.84)
Decrease by 0.5% (17.19)] (15.60)| 15.84

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, showing a significantly higher volatility than in prior

years.
Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fl

h of ch

in foreign

changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of reporting period expressed in Z, are as follows:

ge rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of

Particulars Currency As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As at 1 April 2023
Amount in Amount in ¥ Amount in FCY Amount in X Amount in FCY Amount in ¥
FCY (in millions) (absolute) (in millions) (absolute) (in millions)
(absolute)
Advances to Suppliers
CHF 9,579.00 0.93 1,69,870.00 15.69 11,50,200.00 101.00
EUR 7,73,325.00 71.61 1,63,816.00 14.73 - -
JPY - - 4,93,000.00 0.27 2,80,80,000.00 16.90
usD 25,920.00 2.22 20,02,369.00 161.90
Advances from customer
EUR 40,924.30 3.79 38,070.00 3.42 6,324.00 0.60
usD 2,720.68 0.23 2,296.00 0.19 6,611.00 0.50
Trade receivables
EUR 3,49,023.35 32532 3,15,794.00 28.40 35,786.00 3.10
USD 25,30,504.59 216.43 3,08,119.00 25.68 26,21,820.00 212.00
Trade Payables
GBP 4,340.00 0.48 - - 8,613.00 0.90
IPY s 5 > & 3,12,00,000.00 19.90
UsD 1,367.52 0.12 - - 12,91,448.00 107.80
EUR 9,730.80 0.90 - - - -

*Advance to Suppliers includes capital advances as well. As at 31 March 2025,31 March 2024 and 1 April 2023 the advances to suppliers have been shown net of payables in the Statement of
assets and liabilities, whereas, the same has been shown on gross basis in the above foreign currency exposure note.

<This Page intentionally left blank>
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Foreign currency sensitivity Effect on profit before| Effect on profit Effect on profit
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

Advances to Suppliers*

CHF sensitivity

3/CHF- increase by 10% 0.09 1.57 10.10
Z/CHF- decrease by 10% (0.09) (1.57) (10.10)
EUR sensitivity

¥/EUR- increase by 10% 7.16 147 -
%/EUR- decrease by 10% (7.16) (1.47) =
JPY sensitivity

%/JPY- increase by 10% - 0.03 1.69
2/JPY- decrease by 10% - (0.03) (1.69)
USD sensitivity

%/USD- increase by 10% 0.22 - 16.19
%/USD- decrease by 10% (0.22) - (16.19)
Advances from customer

EUR sensitivity

Z/EUR- increase by 10% (0.38) (0.34) (0.06)
Z/EUR- decrease by 10% 0.38 034 0.06
USD sensitivity

%/USD- increase by 10% (0.02) (0.02) (0.05)
Z/USD- decrease by 10% 0.02 0.02 0.05
Trade receivables

EUR sensitivity

Z/EUR- increase by 10% 3.23 2.84 031
Z/EUR- decrease by 10% (3.23) (2.84) 0.31)
USD sensitivity

%/USD- increase by 10% 21.64 257 2120
Z/USD- decrease by 10% (21.64) (2.57) (21.20)
Trade Payables
GBP sensitivity

%/GBP- increase by 10% (0.05) - (0.09)
2/GBP- decrease by 10% 0.05 - 0.09
JPY sensitivity

%/IPY- increase by 10% - - (1.99)
Z/IPY- decrease by 10% - - 1.99
USD sensitivity

Z/USD- increase by 10% (0.01) - (10.78)
%/USD- decrease by 10% 0.01 - 10.78
EUR sensitivity

Z/EUR- increase by 10% - -
Z/EUR- decrease by 10% - -
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(iii) Comedity price risk:

The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities. Its operating activities require the i hase and f: of Gears products and therefore require a
P g q going p! P!

continuous supply of steel . Due to the significantly increased volatility of the price of the steel, the Company has entered into various purchase contracts for these material for which there is an
active market. The Company maintains the level of these stock as per the requirement of business and market which are d d by the on regular basis. The Company operates
in the way that saving / impact due to change in commodity prices in the active market are passed on to the customer and therefore impact on profit due to change in price of commodity is
unascertainable.

B Credit risk:
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or contract, | gtoafi ial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities , including cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions.
Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding receivables are regularly
monitored for any expected default in repayment. An impairment analysis 1s performed at each reporting date based on ECL matrix. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The
maximum exposure to credit risk from trade receivables at the reporting date and an ageing analysis has been given below:
Expected credit loss for trade receivable under simplified approach

d

O ding for following periods from due date of payment
Ageing Not Due IR ST D I LD 9-12 months past due More than 1 year past due Total
past due past due  past due

31 March 2025

Estimated total gross carrymg amount at default 965.42 411.48 42.52 7.88 SR 2640 1,459.07

ECL- simplified approach . (5.20) Q.71 (1.58) (2.09) (1125)  (22.83)

Net carrying amount 965.42 406.28 39.81 6.30 328 1515 1,436.24

Expected credit loss for trade receivable under simplified approach

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Ageing Not Due W:z:"_‘“:' 3':3:‘:":‘ 6:::':::' 9.12 months past due More than 1 year past dae  Total

31 March 2024

Estimatcd total gross camrying amount at default 903 23 370 87 8871 2394 164 17.12 1,408.51

ECL- simplificd approach

= (7 40) (6 80) (529) (208) (890) (30.47)

Net carrying amount 903.23 363.47 81.91 18.65 2.56 8.22 1,373.04

Expected credit loss for trade receivable under simplified approach
Ov ding for following periods from due date of payment
A Not Due Ly LDHEE (n, ) o 9-12 months past due More than 1 year past due Total
Bt 2 past due pastdue  past due e 2 o
31 March 2023
Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 1.059.85 520.81 39.4 11.98 6.43 457 1,643.08
ECL- sunplified approach - (14.41) (2.62) (1.61) (2.58) (3.45) (24.67)
Net carrying amount 1,059.85 506.40 36.82 10.37 3.85 112 1,61841
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial st p the Company’s exposure to credit risk. Cash are held with creditworthy financial institutions.

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables:
Impairment allowance measured as per simplified approach

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

As at
1 April 2023

Opening balance

3047 24.67 468
Changes during the period/year -7.64 5.80 19.99
Closing Balance 22.83 30.47 24.67

a. Security deposit and other advances

With regards to security deposit and other advances, the management believes these to be high quality assets with negligible credit risk. The management believes the parties to which these
deposits and other advances have been made have strong capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default is negligible or nil and accordingly no provision for excepted credit loss
has been provided on these financial assets other than loss allowance on doubtful advances already provided for.

b. Trade receivables (Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach)

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable. Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from initial recognition.

For homogeneous group of receivables, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default and delay rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates.

At year end, the historical observed default and delay rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed. For other debtors that are heterogenous in nature, individual

receivables which are known to be uncollectible are written off by reducing the carrying amount of trade receivable and the amount of the loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss
within other expenses.
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C Liquidity risk:
The Company monitors its risk of shortage of funds using cash flow forecasting models. These models consider the maturity of its financial investments, committed funding and projected cash
flows from operations. The Company’s objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives tn a timely, cost effective and reliabl and to ge its capital
structure. A bal between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained through the use of various types of borrowings.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on undiscounted cash flows:

Particulars Carrying Amount Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities

Up to 1 year 1 year to 5 years More than 5 years Total
As at 31 March 2025
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade Payables 757.44 757.44 q - 757.44
Borrowings including interest payable 3740.12 2,960.21 936.72 65.45 3,962.39
Lease Liabilities 355.60 130.95 283.29 414.24
Other fi ial liabiliti 20.06 20.06 9 - 20.06)
Total 4873.22 3,868.66| 1,220.01 65.45 5,154.13
Particulars Carrying Amount Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities

Up to 1 year 1 year to S years More than 5 years Total
As at 31 March 2024
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade Payables 732.99 733.00 9 - 733.00!
Borrowings including interest payable 3167.75 2,214.09 1,024.04 102.64 3,340.77
Lease Liabilities 214.70 78.14 163.34 - 241.49
Other financial liabilities 22.02 22.02 9 - 22.02
Total 4137.46 3,047.26 1,187.38 102.64, 4,337.28
Particulars Carrying Amount Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities

Up to 1 year 1 year to 5 years More than S years Total
As at 1 April 2023
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade Payables 954.21 954.21 - - 95421
Borrowings including interest payable 3186.03 1,964.09 1,280.21 186.28 3,430.58
Lease Liabilities 209.93 64.21 183.22 - 24743
Other financial liabilities 15.30 1530 - | 15.30
[ Total 4365.47 2,997.81 1,463.43 18628 4,647.52

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s
performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's p
concentrations of credit risks are controtled and managed accordingly.

TRA d

and prc include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified

<This Page intentionally left Blank>
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38 Right- of use assets (ROU) and lease liability
The Company has lease contracts for various items of plant and machinery, land and building used in its operations. Leases of plant and machinery
and land and building generally have lease terms between 5 yeaZ The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the
right-of-use assets. Generally, the Company 1s restricted from assigning and subleasing the right-of-use assets.

The Company also has certain leases of building and machinery with less than 12 months. The Company applies the " short term lease" recognition
exemption for these leases.

a) Company as lessee

The changes in the carrying value of Right to Use (ROU) assets for the year ended 31 March 2025; 31 March 2024; and 01 April 2023 are

as follows:

Particulars Plant and Machinery Land and Building Total
Gross carrying amount
Deemed Cost as at 1 April 2023 200.25 69.54 269.79
Additions during the year 63.81 1.46 65.27
As at 31 March 2024 264.06 71.00 335.06
Additions during the year 224.60 1.51 226.11
Adjustment during the year (19.83) - (19.83)
As at 31 March 2025 468.83 72.51 541.34
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2023 42.46 16.61 59.07
Depreciation charge for the year 47.82 13.93 61.75
As at 31 March 2024 90.28 30.54 120.82
Depreciation charge for the year 75.87 14.42 90.29
Adjustment during the year (9.68) - (9.68)
As at 31 March 2025 156.47 44.96 201.43
Net carrying amount
As at 01 April 2023 157.79 52.93 210.72
As at 31 March 2024 173.78 40.46 214.24
As at 31 March 2025 312.36 27.55 339.91

The following are the carrying amount of lease liabilities and movement during the year :

As at As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
As at the beginning of the year 214.70 209.93 110.82
Addition during the year 221.25 56.80 131.76
Accretion of interest 26.65 20.01 14.92
Payment of lease liabilities (107.01) (72.04) (47.57)
As at the end of the year 355.60 214.70 209.93
Current 98.14 58.05 46.27
Non-current 257.46 156.65 163.66
Total 355.60 214.70 209.93
Note: The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 7.5% with maturity on 31 March 2025
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss As at As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Depreciation on right of use assets 90.29 61.75 40.74
Interest on lease liabilities 26.65 20.01 14.92
Expenses related to short term leases 25.00 24.38 28.20

141.94 106.14 83.86

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the lease liability

As at As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
0-1 years 130.07 78.14 6421
1to 5 years 288.62 163.34 183.22
more than 5 years - - -
Total 418.69 241.48 247.43

(b) Company as a lessor
The company has rental agreements for property situated at KK-16, HSIDC Estate, Kalka, District-Panchkula, Haryana, 133302. The lease
agreement has term of 12 months (31 March 2024: 12 months). The Company has considered such leases as operating leases and recognized rentai
income in the restated statement of profit and loss. Future undiscounted lease receipts under operating leases are as follows

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

Within one year 1.26 1.26 1.26
Between 1 and 2 years a
Between 2 and 3 years -

1.26
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39 Employee benefit

a) Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contributions towards a provident fund under defined benefit retirement plan for the qualifying employees. The Provident Fund is administered by the
Employee Provident Fund Organization. Under this scheme the Company is required to contribute certain specified percentage of payroll costs to fund the benefits

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognised as expense for the year is as under:

Employer's Contribution to Provident and other funds

b,

=

Defined benefit plans

For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
27.31 25.96 25.53

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under such Act, an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to
specific benefit. The level of benefit provided depends on the employee’s length of service and salary at retirement/ termination age. The contributions are invested in a scheme

with Life Insurance Corporation of India ( LIC) by Holding Company.

The following tables summarnise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance

sheet for the plan

a. Change in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year
Interest cost

Current service cost

Re-measurement (or Actuarial (gain) / loss ansing from
- change in financial assumption

- change in experience

- change in Demographic Assumptions

Benefit paid

Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year

-2

. Change in fair value of Plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year
Remeasurement (gain)/losses
- Return on Plan assets excluding amount recognised in net interest expenses

Investment Income

Employer Contributions

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at end of the year

(g

Expenses Recognised in P&L
Current service cost

Past Service cost

Interest Cost

Return on Plan Asset

Investment income on Plan Assets
Net Cost

d. Expenses recognised in Other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss on obligations due to change in experience/ financial assumptions
Return on Plan assets excluding amount recognized in net interest expenses
Net loss/(gain) recognized in OCI

{42

Discount Rate (per annum)

Rate of escalation in salary (per
Mortality rate

Normal Retirement age

Attrition/ Withdrawal rate (Per annum)

demand in the employment market

31 March 2025

31 March 2024 1 April 2023

69.13 64.83 57.26
4.97 481 412
8.18 8.79 8.49
2.81 (5.75) (1.11)
0.13 (0.44) (1.54)

s ! 0.00

(3.48) (3.11) (239)

81.74 69.13 64.83

31 March 2025

31 March 2024 1 April 2023

71.50 58.03 40.05
022 0.25 034
5.14 4.30 2.88
1.00 12.03 17.15

(3.48) 3.11) (2.39)

74.38 71.50 58.03

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
8.18 8.79 8.49

497 4.81 4.12

(5.14) (4.30) (2.88)

8.01 9.30 9.73

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
2.93 (6.19) (2.67)

(0.22) (0.25) (0.34)

25721 (6.44) (3.0

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
6.75% 7.20% 7.40%

6.00% 6.00% 7.00%

100% of IALM 2012-14  100% of IALM 2012-14 100% of IALM 2012-14
58 year 58 year 58 year

5% 5% 5%
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f. Detail of Provision for gratuity recognized in restated statement of assets and liabilities

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

Amount recognized in restated statement of assets and liabilities
Present value of defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 81.74 69.13 64.83

Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 74.38 71.50 58.03
Liability/(Asset) recognised in balance sheet 7.34 (2.37) 6.80
Current liabilities/current assets - 2.37) 0.00
Non-current liabilities 7.34 - 6.80
g. Expected contribution during the next annual reporting Period
The company's best estimate of contribution during the next year 13.01 5577, 1531
h. Maturity Analysis of the Benefit
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Within the next 12 months 13.71 7.75 6.91
Between I and 5 years 2877 28.54 2427
Between 5 and 10 years 32.07 30.02 29.27
10 years and above 83.79 75.49 83.71
i. Sensitivity Analysis
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2025,31 March 2024 and 1 April 2023 is as shown below:
Discount rate
Sensitivity Level % increase 1% decrease
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation (75.73) 88.65
Salary growth rate
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation 88.55 (75.72)
Employee Turnover
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation 8221 (81.01)
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2024 is as shown below:
Discount rate
Sensitivity Level % increase 1% decrease
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation (64.02) 75.00
Salary growth rate
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation 74.87 (64.01)
__Employee Turnover
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation 69.87 (68.04)
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 1 April 2023 is as shown below:
Sensitivity Level Discount rate
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation 1% increase 1% decrease
(59.72) 70.74
Sensitivity Level Salary growth rate
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation 1% increase 1% decrease
70.57 (59.72)

Sensitivity Level
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation

Attrition rate

50% increase of attrition
rate

50% decrease of attrition rate

64.90

(64.64)

Sensitivities due to mortality is not matenal hence impact of change due to these is not calculated.

Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to various risks as follows:

a) Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

b) Discount Rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability

c) Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact plan’s liablity.

¢) Compensated Absences
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such
absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company treats accumulated leave
expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such ¢ bsences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the period/year-end.




oueaado JuaLmd uey) 190 sjusunsaAulsafold Aue saey jou sop Auedwoy) sy souls d[qestjdde jou st OnEl SIY |, JUSUISIAUL UO WINSY

1894 snowaaid 0 paredwos se Anjiqeiyoid ut Juswaaoxduit 03 ang ‘q

-1eak snoiaaid 0) paseduwios se SFUIMOLIOQ JUILIND U SSEAISUL JO JUNOIIE UQ D
PT-€7 Ad 01 paredwiod se ¢7-p7 A4 Suunp aoueunojsad paroidun 0 anq ‘g
‘paxmbai s1 uoneuR{dXa OU “94,G7 URY) J10WYSSI| ST ONEL Ut 2FUBYD JISAAYM 'V

1SAJON
[s19s5€ XB) paLIOJap - JuawdooAdp
; : : 1opun  sjosse  sjqifuelu] - spesse  d[qiueiy] $1S09 ddUBUL] + XB) 210J3q pakojdwa
3]0, 0, 0, -
gty %61'5€ %06 %t sBUIMOLI0q JUSLIND-UOU PUE JuaLIND + Ajnba [e101][sso[Ayoid = Xel pue sardjul 91039q s3uiurey AT [endes uo wnidy
pakojdus [ende)
ESN %67 0£T 99T 1 %91t suonerado woyy anuARY Xe) 1ae 11014 aBeuasidg| oueijord 1oN
[sauiiqei] JuaLny - s1asse juaun)| oljel 1dA0WIN}
210 ° - o i s
D 9I0N %005 €9 (6897) (18'6) [ades Futyopm suoue1ado woy SMusAIY soun [jendeo 1N
sasuadxa T
v 910N 04,651 L6V 61'9 sajqeAed open) 23104y [paje[al 101IP JOYIO + SIOUISqE pajesuadwiod pue MM d o
Annyesd -sasuadxa Jyousq aakojdwd tsaseydng sau] 219 gee Ll
V 910N °%b8'S 96°€ LL'E $9]qeA19021 open) afeIoAy suonesado woy snuaATYy i ey
S2]QEAIS091 dpel]
saur ],
v 910N %I T 66'€ ¥s'€ sauojudAl afesany suone12do uIol) INUIASY o
sow | |1aaouwiny A10juaAu]
€ 210N %97 981 %699 %91°61 . Sl
Kymba [e10} oFer2Ay Xe} Joye 1ol aFeiuaorag[mbe 0wy
guouied Bunerado yses-uoN 1o mum“uax“ﬁo_”owcc 3
V Q10N %96 - €870 180 asea1+(siusmedard Suipnpour) Juouwikedal H e e O P sawiy e A
U0 SSOT+ SISOD 3dueuUlj 4+ dsuadxd uonezipowE 90118 1933
fediduny + (pazifendes Juipnjour) asuadxa Is319)u]
: : pue uoneaidaq 4+ Xel JOYE  SSO|AYOI]
[semniqery oseap+sBuimorioq
vV 210N 2%20°0~ €T€ 7S Aynba 10|, juaLny) + sfuimoiioq JuaLmd-uoN] sownn] | onesAynba-19aq
193p [B10]
V 210N %91 8- €60 98°0 sani[Iqel] uaLn) S)OSSE JuUa.LIND) sawil] onel JuaLny)
P07 Y2 1B N 1€
IIUELIBA 10§ UOSEIY 01 S707 WHEW = yzot ; = S0 nun
€ woay saZuBYd JO 9, WIEIN I€IESY | HMBIW TEI8 SV J0JBUNUOUd(] J0)eIIWINN JUSUINSBIIA] oyey

soned B UEUIL]

or

(Pa38)S ISIMIIY}O0 SSA[UN ‘SUOT[|IU Ul > Ul IIB S)UNOWE nv)
STOT Y2IEN [€ PIPUd 1834 3Y) 10) SIUIWIB)S [BIIUBUY 0 SAON

1€8500D.LdP86TdHOE16IN * NID
PIAMUL] NVALL SI8IN) JUOISINA



Milestone Gears Private Limited
CIN : U29130HP1984PTC005831
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in_% in millions, unless otherwise stated)

41 First time adoption of Ind AS

Pursuant to the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Second Amendment Rules, 2015, the Company adopted 31 March 2025 as reporting date for first time adoption of
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-AS) - notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) amendment
Rules 2016 (as amended from time to time) and consequently 1 April 2023 as the transition date for preparation of its statutory financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2025. The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, were the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind-AS. Upto the financial year ended 31
March 2024, the financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (“Indian GAAP” or “Previous GAAP” or "IGAAP").

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for the financial year ending on 31 March 2025, together with the
comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, as described in the summary of material accounting policies.

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the
following tables and notes

Exemptions applied
Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following
exemptions:

Optional exceptions
Deemed cost of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment (including capital work in progress) as recognised
in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. This exemption can
also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible assets. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure alt of its property, plant and equipment (including
capital work in progress) and intangible assets at their Indian GAAP carrying value.

Reconciliation of Retained earnings as at 01 April 2023

Particular References % (In millions)

Opening Balance as per IGAAP as on 01 April 2023 965.20
Fair value of trade receivables -24.67
Revenue from operations A8 -13.48
Cost of sales A8 8.52
Investments A4 -2.48
Impact of right-of-use asset A2 -59.06
Impact of lease liabilities A2 46.11
Export incentives A9 9.94
Interest income on security deposits Al 2855
Borrowings A7 129
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans AS -11.96
Deferred tax 15.48
Opening Balance as per IND AS as on 01 April 2023 937.44

<This page intentionally left blank>
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Equity reconciliation as on 31 March 2024

31 March 2024
Ragtcniars R Indian GAAP Adjustments Reclassification Ind AS
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment A2 1,402.27 - - 1,402.27
Right-of-use assets B - 214.24 - 214.24
Capital work in progress 436.40 - 50.74 487.14
Intangible assets 333 - - 3833
Financial assets
i. [nvestments Ad 33.10 -0.48 - 32.62
ii. Other financial assets Al,B - -16.02 107.73 91.71
Deferred tax assets (net) A6 60.10 14.55 - 74.65
Long term loan and advances B 167.50 - -167.50 -
Non Current tax assets (net) B - - 9.38 9.38
Other non-current assets B 121.00 - -2.84 118.16
Current assets
Inventories A8 1,312.10 14.61 - 1.326.71
Financial assets
i. Trade receivables A3, B 1,402.90 -46.58 21.72 1,378.04
ii. Cash and cash equivalents B 10.40 - -10.14 0.26
iii. Other financial assets - - - -
Other current assets A9,B 92.80 4.06 -19.29 71.57
Total assets 5,041.90 184.38 -10.20 5,216.08
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 30.00 - - 30.00
Other equity 1,054.20 -43.22 - 1,010.98
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
1. Borrowings A7,B 1,042.77 -0.48 -15.27 1,027.02
ii. Lease Liabilities A2 - 156.65 - 156.65
Provisions AS 0.90 9.57 - 10.47
Other non-current liabilities - - -
Non current tax liabilities (net)
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i Borrowings A2 2,125.43 - - 2,125.43
ii. Lease - 58.05 - 58.05
iii Trade payables
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises B 679.30 - 53.70 733.00
iv Other financial liabilities B - - 3732 3732
Other current liabilities B 109.00 - -85.95 23.05
Provisions AS 0.30 3.81 - 4.11
Current tax liabilities (net) - - - -
Total equity and liabilities 5,041.90 184.38 -10.20 5,216.08
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Reconciliation of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2024:
Particulars Note Indian GAAP Ind AS Reclassifications Ind- AS
(regrouped) Adjustments
Income
Revenue from operations .8, 5,303.90 2545 3.89 5,333.24
Other income Al,B 35.10 3.15 -11.56 26.69
Total income 5,339.00 28.60 -1.67 5,359.93
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 2,428.65 - 2,428.65
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and scrap A8 111.30 27.93 - 139.23
Employee benefits expense AS,B 555.00 7.83 4.46 567.29
Finance costs A2, A7 24820 20.43 - 268.63
Depreciation and amortisation expense A2 271.70 61.74 - 333.44
Other expenses A3, B 1,597.50 (66.23) -12.13 1,519.14
Total expenses 5,212.35 51.70 -7.67 5,256.38
Profit before tax 126.65 (23.10) 0.00 103.55
i. Current tax 43.15 - - 43.15
ii. Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - - - -
iii. Deferred tax credit A6 (5.60) (1.20)) - (6.80)
Total tax expenses 37.55 (1.20) - 36.35
Profit for the year 89.10 (21.90) 0.00 67.20
A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans AS - 6.44 - 6.44
Income tax relating to above items - (1.62)| - (1.62))
Net other comprehensive income/(loss), not to be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss - 4.82 - 4.82
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Net (loss)/gain on investment through Other Comprehensive Income A4 - 2.03 - 2.03
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - (0.51) - (0.51)|
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods 1 1.52 i 152
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax = 6.34 o 6.34
Total comprehensive (loss)/profit for the year 89.10 (15.56)| 0.00 73.54
Reconciliation of statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2024
Indian Gaap Adjustments Ind AS

Net cash flow from operating activities 774.11 25.70 799.81
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (520.14) 72.16 (447.98)
Net cash used in financing activities (261.90) (97.86) (359.76)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (7.93) (0.00) (7.93)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8.19 - 8.19
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.26 (0.00) 0.26
Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity

A.l Security deposits
Under Indian GAAP, the security deposits paid for lease rent are shown at the transaction value whereas under Ind AS, the same are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently recorded at amortized cost. Accordingly, the difference between the transaction and fair value of the security deposits paid towards lease rent is recognized along
with Right-of-use assets and is depreciated over the period of the lease term on straight line basis as depreciation expense. Further, interest is accreted on the fair value of the
security deposits and interest income is recognized over the tenure of security deposit.

A.2 Leases
Under Indian GAAP, the payments made under operating leases are charged to the statement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS, the Company has elected full retrospective
approach and recognized right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on the transaction date. The impact of accumulated depreciation on right-of-use assets recognized and impact of
interest on lease liability since the inception has been accounted in retained eamings. Further, impact of interest accretion on lease liability is shown under finance cost and
depreciation on Right-of-use assets is shown under depreciation and amortization expenses.

A.3 Impairment of financial assets - Trade receivables

Under Indian GAAP, the Company has recognized provision for doubtful debts on specific trade receivable balances. Under Ind AS, the Company followed simplified approach
to compute expected credit loss on trade receivables. The Company has measured loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses for the trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component.
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A4

A5

A.6

AT

A8

A9

Investments

a) Under the Previous GAAP, long term investments were measured at cost. Under the Ind AS, investments in equity instruments of companies other than Subsidiaries are
measured at fair value. As at the transition date, the Company has accounted for these investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT).

b) Under the Previous GAAP, the Company accounted for investments in mutual funds as non current investments measured at cost. Under Ind AS, the Company has designated
such investments at fair value through other comprehensive income which are to be measured at fair value at each reporting date.

The difference between the fair value of these instruments and Indian GAAP carrying amount has been adjusted in the retained eamings and the impact of subsequent
measurement is recognized as other comprehensive income.

Employee benefits - Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity):

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognizes costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, the entire
cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to statement of Profit and Loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements [comprising of actuarial gains and losses] are recognized
immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Deferred tax assets

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period.
Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the Balance Sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or
liability in the Balance Sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences relating to various
transition adjustments

Borrowings (Term loan)
Under Indian GAAP, the transaction costs incurred in connection with borrowings are amortized on a straight line basis in the statement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS,
transaction costs are included in the initial recognition amount of financial liability and charged to profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Revenue and change in inventory

The g has reevaluated the timing of revenue recognition for the earlier periods, ensuring that revenue is recognized when control of goods is transferred to the
customer (as per Ind AS 115 ). The adjustment to this effect is recognized in revenue and corresponding change in inventory in the respective year.

Export incentives

The Company had recognized export incentives under the RODTEP (Remission of Duties and Taxes on Export Products) scheme in its financial statements prepared in
accordance with Previous GAAP. Under Ind AS, such incentives have been accounted for in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 20 Accounting for Government Grants
and Disclosure of Government Assistance. Accordingly, the export incentive income has been reclassified/adjusted as per Ind AS, resulting in changes in the classification and
timing of recognition as compared to Previous GAAP.

Reclassification done to comply with the presentation requirement of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013
Appropriate re-groupings have been made, wherever required, by reclassification of the corresponding items of income, expenses, assets, liabilities and cash flows, in order to
bring them in line with the accounting policies and classification as per the Ind AS financial information of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025 prepared in
accordance with amendment to Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013, requirements of Ind AS 1 and other applicable Ind AS principles and the requirements of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended.




Milestone Gears Private Limited

CIN : U29130HP1984PTC005831

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in T in millions, unless otherwise stated)

42

43

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule 111

(i) Details of Benami Property held
The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(iii) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

(iv) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has not made investment in any other company.

(v) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

(vi) Utilisation of borrowed funds
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(vii) Undisclosed income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has
not been recorded in the books of account.

(viii) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current year.

(ix) Valuation of Property plant & equipment and other intangible asset
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or both during the current year

(x) Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the company
The title deeds of immovable property are held in the name of company except as disclosed in note 3.

(xi) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
The company doesn't have charges pending for registration with the ROC beyond the statutory period. However, correction/modification/Satisfaction of
charges in respect of some of the charges in favour of HDFC Bank Ltd. and YES Bank Ltd. are under process for correction/modification/satisfaction. .

Events after the reporting period

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 10 September 2025 and shareholders of the Company in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting
held on 13 September 2025 approved the sub-division of 3,000,000 equity shares of % 10 each into 15,000,000 equity shares of Z 2 each and issuance of
bonus equity share of ¥ 2 each in the ratio of 5:1 for the Equity shares of X 2 each.
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44 Audit trail

45

The accounting software used for maintaining its books of account of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025 has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year. The management has not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with in respect of the accounting software for the period for which the audit trail feature was operating and the audit trail was preserved as per the
statutory requirement for record retention.

Rounding off
Amounts mentioned as "0" in the Financial Information denote amounts rounded off being less than ¥ Ten thousand.
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